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Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of THE PREMIER SUGAR MILLS &
DISTILLERY COMPANY LIMITED and its Subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at September 30, 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at September 30, 2024 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable In
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern of a Subsidiary Company

We draw attention to note 1.2(b) in the consolidated financial statements, which indicates that The Frontier
Sugar Mills & Distillery Limited (FSM) production facilities are closed since the year 2008 due to diversion of
entire sugarcane crop to Gur making, the small size of the plant is not economical to run and
FSM has been suffering losses over the years; accumulated loss as at September 30, 2024
aggregated Rs.139.115 million. These events and conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on FSM's ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements of
FSM, however, have been prepared on the going concern basis based on the facts as detailed in the
aforementioned note. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the key audit matters:

S.No.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1.

Capital expenditures & revaluation of]
property, plant and equipment (note 6)

The Group invested in capital projects with
significant capital expenditure incurred during the
year ended Sep 30, 2024. The significant level of|
capital expenditure requires consideration of the
nature of the costs incurred to ensure that their
capitalization in properly, plant and equipment
meets the specific recognition criteria as per the
Group's accounting policy. Further, determining
which costs meet the criteria for capitalisation,
capitalisation of borrowing costs and related
expenses are the areas where management

judgement is involved.

The Group's management also carries its
buildings on freehold land & buildings and roads
on leasehold land, plant, machinery & equipment
under revaluation model. Under the said model,
an entity may carry all items of property, plant
and equipment of a class at a revalued amount,
which is the fair value of the items at the date of|
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation.

As at September 30, 2024 the carrying value of
the Group's property, plant & equipment
aggregates to Rs.29.649 billion. The fair value of
the Group's assets was assessed by
management based on independent valuation
performed by an external property valuation
Expert.

The carrying values of these assets have been
assessed based on present market value of
buildings and civili works and assessed
depreciated market value of plant, machinery and
equipment.

We identified property, plant and equipment as a
key audit matter due to the significant carrying
values and the significant management judgment
and estimation involved in determining their
values due to factors described above,

In response to this matter, we performed the
following audit procedures:

- obtained an understanding of the design and
implementation of management controls over
capitalisation and performed tests of controls
over authorization of capital expenditure and
accuracy of its recording in the system;

assessed whether the costs Iincurred and
borrowing cost capitalised met the relevant
criteria for capitalization as per the applicable
financial reporting framewaork;

evaluated the competence, capabilites and
objectivity of the independent external property|
valuation Expert engaged by the management

as management Expert for valuation;

obtained understanding of the valuation process
and techniques adopted by the valuation Expert

to assess the reasonableness of the report;

assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
presented in the financial statements regarding
property, plant and equipment based on the
applicable accounting standards and
requirements of Companies Act, 2017.
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S.No.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

. |Contingencies

The Group is subject to material litigations
involving different Courts pertaining to taxation
and other matters, which require management to
make assessments and judgements with respect
to likelihood and impact of such litigations on the
financial statements of the Group.

The management has engaged independent
legal counsels on these matters.

The assessment of provisioning against such
litigations Is a complex exercise and requires
significant judgements to determine the level of

In response to this matter, we performed the

following audit procedures:

- discussed legal cases with the internal legal

department of the Group to understand the
management ' s view point, obtained and
reviewed the litigation documents to assess the
facts and circumstances;

- obtained opinions from legal counsels dealing

with such cases in the form of confirmations;

- evaluated the possible outcome of these legal

cases in line with the requirements of IAS 37
(Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent

certainty on these matters. assets); and

The details of contingencies along with -
management ' s assessments are disclosed in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

disclosures of legal exposures and provisions
were assessed for completeness and accuracy.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors'
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report
that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with |ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained upto
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

¢ FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and evenlis in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Osman Hameed
Chaudbhri.

MWWM ‘(\ (o,
LAHORE; FEBRUARY 11, 2025 SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.,
UDIN: AR202410104zsYTIBuGVY CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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THE PREMIER SUGAR MILLS & DISTILLERY COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Assets

Non-current Assets Note
Property, plant and equipment G
Right-of-use assets 7
Investment property 8
Long term investments 9
Security deposits
Deferred tax asset 242

Current Assets
Stores and spares 10
Stock-in-trade 1"
Trade debts 12
Loans and advances 13
Trade deposits, short term prepayments and other receivables 14
Tax refunds due from the Government 15
Short term investments 16
Bank balances 17

TOTAL ASSETS

Equity and Liabilities

Share Capital and Reserves

Authorised capital
5,750,000 (2023: 5,750,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 18

Capital reserves
- share redemption
- revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 19

General revenue reserve

Unappropriated profit

Equity Attributable to Equity
Holders of the Holding Company

Non-controlling Interest

Non-current Liabilities
Long term finances 20
Loans from related parties 21
Lease liabilities 22
Government grant 23
Deferred liabilities 24

Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 25
Contract liabilities
Unclaimed dividends
Accrued mark-up 26
Short term borrowings 27
Current portion of non-current liabilities 28
Dividends payable to non-controlling interest
Taxation 29

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Contingencies and Commitments 30

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

2024 2023
--- Rupees in thousand ---
29,649,297 26,796,376
326,003 328,202
19,633 24,543
203,917 182,471
17,244 16,985
192,100 10,100
30,408,194 27,358,677
913,342 962,775
4,986,667 5,513,065
440,448 1,251,423
1,121,798 1,071,224
126,370 242,022
466,899 87,296
78 10,305
1,114,598 950,611
9,170,200 10,088,721
39,578,394 37,447 398
57,500 57,500
37,500 37,500
1 1
5,929,257 5,805,000
1,010,537 1,010,537
285,358 2,342,927
7,262,653 9,195 965
8,017,411 8,608,832
15,280,064 17,804,797
6,265,941 4,673,542
153,547 156,854
165,814 161,396
49 696 76,281
3,306,111 4,062,491
9,941,109 9,130,564
2,188,735 1,595,604
36,538 1,973,332
23,149 7,470
461,443 746,754
9,671,811 4,615,620
1,556,429 1,429,079
572 15,144
418,544 129,134
14,357,221 10,512,037
24,298,330 19,642,601

39,578,394

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

e

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive

S

37,447,398

Director
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THE PREMIER SUGAR MILLS & DISTILLERY COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OF LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees in thousand
Gross sales 3 44,230,134 31,822,243
Sales tax, other government
levies and discounts 32 (4,834,984) (3,174 453)

Sales - net 39,395,150 28,647,790
Cost of sales 33 38,253,534 22,088 434
Gross profit 1,141,616 6,559,356
Selling and distribution expenses 34 942,966 933,842
Administrative and general expenses 35 1,832,020 1,317,207
Other income 36 (229,005) (242,943)
Other expenses 37 16,366 111,887

2,562,347 2,119,993
Operating (loss) / profit (1,420,731) 4,439,363
Finance cost 38 4,831,421 2,981,277

(6,252,152) 1,458,086
Share of profit from Associated

Companies - net 9.2 16,021 11,897

(Loss) / profit before revenue tax and income tax (6,236,131) 1,469,983
Final taxes - levy 422,190 314,112
(Loss) / profit before income tax (6,658,321) 1,155,871
Income tax 2,211,124 477,770
Associated companies 6,474 7,626
(Loss) / profit after income tax (4,453,671) 1,626,015
Attributable to:
- Equity holders of the Holding Company (2,482,663) 812,433
- Non-controlling interest (1,971,008) 813,582

(4,453,671) 1,626,015

------ Rupees-----

Combined (loss) / earnings per share 40 (662.04) 216.65

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

e

Chief Executive

S

Chief Financial Officer Director
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THE PREMIER SUGAR MILLS & DISTILLERY COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees in thousand
(Loss) / profit after taxation (4,453,671) 1,626,015
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Share of other comprehensive income
from Associated Companies 9.2 11,776 5,701
Gain / (loss) on remeasurement of staff
retirement benefits-gratuity 4,108 (11,500)
Impact of tax (1,416) 3,601
2,692 (7,899)
Surplus arisen upon revaluations
of property, plant and equipment 19.7 3,161,518 4,039,317
Impact of tax 19.7 (1,304,150) (1,267,515)
1,857,368 2,771,802
1,871,836 2,769,604
Total comprehensive (loss) / income (2,581,835) 4,395,619
Attributable to:
- Equity holders of the Holding Company (1,577,959) 2,637,162
- Non-controlling interest (1,003,876) 1,758,457
(2,581,835) 4,395,619

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

e

Chief Executive

S

Chief Financial Officer Director
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THE PREMIER SUGAR MILLS & DISTILLERY COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Attributable to equity holders of the Holding Company
Reserves
Capital
Mon-
Revaluation
$haitm1 Share | surplus on General Uiviipgics Total c:;n::ulllng Total equity
capital | o om. property, revenue priated profit nterest
ption plant and
equipmant
e Rupees in thousand
Balance as at September 30, 2022 37,500 1 4,563,539 1,010,537 1,223,171 6,834,748 6,588,892 13,423,640
Total comprehensive income for
the year ended September 30, 2023:
- Profit after taxation - - - - 812,433 812,433 813,582 1,626,015
- Other comprehensive income - - 1,826,927 - (2,198) 1,824,729 944 875 2,769,604
- - 1,826,927 - 810,235 2,637,162 1,758,457 4,395,619
Effect of items directly crediled in equity
by Associated Companies - - . . 497 497 - 497
Non-controlling interest of CSM - - - - - - (14,959) (14,958)
Transfer from revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment
on account of incremental
depreciation for the year
{net of deferred taxation) - - (585.466) - 309,024 (276,442) 276,442 -
Balance as at September 30, 2023 37,500 1 5,805,000 1,010,537 2,342,927 9,195965 8,608,832 17,804,797
Total comprehensive income for
the year ended Septembar 30, 2024:
- Loss after taxation - - - - (2,482,663) (2,482,663) (1,971,008) (4.453,6T1)
- Other comprehensive income - - B58,254 - 14,468 872,722 999,114 1,871,836
- - 858,254 - (2.468,195) (1,609,941) (971,894) (2,581,835)
Effect of items directly credited in equity
by Associated Companies - - - - 189 189 - 189
Nen-controlling interest of CSM - - . - (11.849) (11,849) 143 462 131,613
Transfer from revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment
on account of incremental
depreciation for the year
(net of deferred taxation) - - (733,997) . 422 286 (311,711) 31,71 .
Dividend paid by the subsidiary
company - - - - - - (74,700) (74,700)
37,500 1 5,929,257 1,010,537 285358 T,262653 8,017.411  15280,064

Balance as at September 30, 2024

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

e

Chief Executive

S

Chief Financial Officer Director
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THE PREMIER SUGAR MILLS & DISTILLERY COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities Note Rupees in thousand
(Loss) / profit for the year - before taxation (6,236,131) 1,469,983
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
and right of use assets 610 & 7 2,161,371 1,576,775
Depreciation on investment property 4,910 282
Profit from Associated Companies - net (16,021) (11,897)
Return on bank deposits (103,393) (44,093)
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity (net) 11,580 6,050
Un-claimed payable balances written-back (7,279) (160)
(Gain) / loss on disposal of operating fixed assets (15,729) (8,592)
Gain on redemption of short term investments - (3,223)
Gain on re-measurement of short term investments to fair value (3) (73)
Uncollectible receivable balances written-off - 639
Finance cost 4,792,040 2,807,543
Loss allowance for doubtful advances 130,472 -
Loss allowance for doubtful debts 30,091 1,551
Impairment loss for export subsidy 149,737 65413
Profit before working capital changes 901,645 5,860,198
Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores and spares 10 49,433 (339,487)
Stock-in-trade 1 526,398 (1,372,693)
Trade debts 12 780,884 (1,163,746)
Loans and advances 13 (79,898) 388,792
Trade deposits, short term prepayments and other receivables 115,652 50,785
Sales tax refundable - net (800) 376
hdvansesmiysnenssleotifdapdyables and contract liabilities (1,435,917) 2,397,846
(44,248) (38,127)
Cash generated from operations 857,397 5,822,071
Income tax paid (92,203) (278,120)
Security deposits (259) (500)
Net cash generated from operating activities 764,935 2,543,451
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment (1,887,301) (3,056,703)
Sale proceeds of operating fixed assets 15,729 29,800
Short term investments - made 571 (477)
- redeemed 16 10,801 17,751
Return on bank deposits received 103,393 44,093
Net cash used in investing activities (1,756,807) (2,965,536)
Cash flows from financing activities
Long term finances - net 20 1,373,664 1,020,567
Loans from related parties 21 (10,168) (31,235)
Government grant 23 (26,585) 75,863
Lease finances - net 22 (160,999) (153,128)
Short term borrowings - net 5,056,191 (387,275)
Finance cost paid (5,077,351) (2,489,914)
Dividends paid 1,107 (35)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 1,155,859 (1,965,157)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 163,987 612,758
Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year 950,611 337,853
17 1,114,598 950,611

Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

e

Chief Executive

S

Chief Financial Officer Director
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1.2
(a)

THE PREMIER SUGAR MILLS & DISTILLERY COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS
The Premier Sugar Mills & Distillery Company Ltd. (the Holding Company)

The Holding Company was incorporated on July 24, 1944 as a Public Company and its
shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd. The Holding Company is principally
engaged in manufacture and sale of white sugar and spirit. The Holding Company's Mills
and Registered Office are located at Mardan (Khyber Pakhtunkhwa) whereas the Head
Office is situated at King's Arcade, 20-A, Markaz F-7, Islamabad. The Holding Company
has shifted its distillery from Mardan to Ramak, Dera Ismail Khan during the financial year
ended September 30, 2020.

Subsidiary Companies

Chashma Sugar Mills Ltd. (CSM)

CSM was incorporated in Pakistan on May 05, 1988 as a public limited company, under
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed upon enactment of the Companies Act, 2017
on May 30, 2017) and commenced its commercial production from October 01, 1992.
CSM has its shares quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd. CSM is principally
engaged in manufacturing, production, processing, compounding, preparation and sale of
sugar, other allied compound, intermediates and allied products. CSM is a Subsidiary of
The Premier Sugar Mills and Distillery Company Ltd. The head office of CSM is situated
at King's Arcade, 20-A, Markaz F-7, Islamabad and its manufacturing facilities are located
at Dera Ismail Khan, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa.

Sub-subsidiary Companies

Whole Foods (Private) Ltd. (WFPL)

WFPL (100% owned Subsidiary of CSM) was incorporated in Pakistan as a Private
Limited Company under the Companies Act, 2017 on October 26, 2017. The principal
activity of WFPL is to set-up, manage, supervise and control the storage facilities for
agricultural produce. WFPL is yet to commence its operations.

Ultimate Whole Foods (Private) Ltd. (UWFPL)

UWFPL (Subsidiary Company of CSM) was incorporated in Pakistan as a Private Limited
Company under the Companies Act, 2017 on May 17, 2021. The objective of UWFPL is
to set up mills for milling wheat, gram, other grains and other allied products and by-
products from flours. The operations of UNFPL were started on October 07, 2023.

The storage facilities of Business Units are located at Layyah and Bhakkar, Punjab.

The Holding Company directly and indirectly controls / beneficially owns more than fifty
percent of CSM's paid-up capital and also has the power to elect and appoint more than
fifty percent of its directors; accordingly, CSM has been treated a Subsidiary with effect
from the financial year ended September 30, 2010.

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding
Company and its Subsidiaries The Frontier Sugar Mills and Distillery Ltd., Chashma
Sugar Mills Ltd., Sub-subsidiaries Whole Foods (Pvt.) Ltd. and Ultimate Whole Foods
(Pvt.) Ltd. (the Group) for the year ended September 30, 2024. The corresponding figures
presented in these consolidated financial statements are the same as presented in the
preceding consolidated financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2023.
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(b)

(c)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the information
available in the audited separate financial statements of the Holding Company, CSM and
FSM for the year ended September 30, 2024 and the un-audited financial statements of
the Sub-subsidiaries for the year ended September 30, 2024.

The Frontier Sugar Mills and Distillery Ltd. (FSM)

FSM was incorporated on March 31, 1938 as a Public Company and its shares were
quoted on all the Stock Exchanges of Pakistan, FSM was delisted from the Stock
Exchanges as detailed in paragraph (c) below. The principal activity of FSM was
manufacturing and sale of white sugar and its Mills and Registered Office are located at
Takht-i-Bhai, Mardan (Khyber Pakhtunkhwa). FSM is a Subsidiary of The Premier Sugar
Mills & Distillery Company Ltd. (the Holding Company).

Going concern basis

The financial statements of FSM have been prepared on going concern basis despite the
uncertainties detailed below that may cast doubt about FSM's ability to continue as a
going concern:

- FSM's production facilities are closed since the year 2008 due to diversion of entire
sugarcane crop to Gur making;

- the small size of the plant is not economical to run; and

- FSM has been suffering losses over the years; accumulated loss as at September 30,
2024 aggregated Rs.139.115 million.

The financial statements of FSM have been prepared on going concern basis as the
management is exploring different avenues / options for future purposes, which include
but are not limited to flour mills and other industrial / commercial projects. The
management is of the view that with the start of these projects, FSM will be able to cover
losses and continue as a going concern. FSM is in possession of property, plant and
equipment having carrying values of Rs.1.147 billion at the reporting date, which may be
utilised for proposed future projects. Further, being part of Premier Group of Companies,
FSM also enjoys financial backing from the Group.

Delisting of FSM

The Holding Company, the maijority shareholder of FSM, had decided to purchase all the
ordinary and preference shares of FSM held by Others. The shareholders of FSM had
passed a special resolution for de-listing of FSM from the Stock Exchanges at the annual
general meeting held on January 30, 2010. The shareholders also passed a special
resolution for purchase of 263,134 ordinary shares at a price of Rs.190.20 per share and
26,970 preference shares at a price of Rs.18.60 per share by the Holding Company in the
extra ordinary general meeting held on June 10, 2010.

The purchase agent of the Holding Company (Invest Capital Investment Bank Ltd.) had
completed the buying of 36,209 ordinary shares and 150 preference shares within the
initial period of 60 days and after the submission of an undertaking to the Stock
Exchanges to purchase the remaining shares upto August 26, 2011, FSM was de-listed
from all the Stock Exchanges with effect from October 25, 2010. The purchase agent,
during the financial year ended September 30, 2011, had further purchased 19,884
ordinary shares and 20,014 preference shares.
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2.2

2.3

2.4

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and
reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies
Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017
have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain items as disclosed in the relevant accounting policies
below.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee, which is the
Group's functional and presentation currency. Amounts presented in the financial
statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting and
reporting standards requires the use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are as follows:

i} Estimated useful life of operating assets - note 5.1 and 6

The Group annually reviews appropriateness of the method of depreciation, useful
ife and residual value used in the calculation of depreciation. Further, where
applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of asset is made for possible
impairment on an annual basis. Any change in these estimates in the future, might
affect the carrying amount of the respective item of property, plant and equipment,
with a corresponding effect on the depreciation and impairment.

i) Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - note 5.1 and 6

The Group carries out revaluations, considering the change in circumstances and
assumptions from latest revaluation. The fair value of the Group’s freehold land,
buildings & roads and plant & machinery is assessed by management based on
independent valuation performed by an external property valuation expert as at year
end. For valuation of freehold land, buildings & roads and plant & machinery, the
current market price or depreciated replacement cost method is used, whereby,
current cost of construction of similar freehold land, buildings, roads and plant &
machinery in similar locations has been adjusted using suitable depreciation rates to
arrive at present market value. This technique requires significant judgment as to
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i)

iv)

vi)

vii)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example land, are not subject to
amortisation or depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to depreciation/ amortisation are reviewed for impairment at each statement
of financial position date or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds ils recoverable
amount. Reversals of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that assets
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss has been
recognised. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Provision for stores and spares - note 5.5 and 10

For items which are slow-moving and/or identified as obsolete, adequate provision is
made for any excess book value over estimated realisable value on a regular basis.
The Group reviews the carrying amount of stores and spares on a regular basis and
provision is made for obsolescence.

Write down of stock in trade to net realisable value - note 5.6 and 11

Net realisable value is determined on the basis of estimated selling price of the
product in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

If the expected net realisable value is lower than the carrying amount, a write-down is
recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its net realisable
value. Provision is made in the unconsolidated financial statements for obsolete and
slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate.

Estimation of impairment loss allowance - note 5.18 and 12

The Group reviews the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model, which is based on the
historical credit loss experience over the life of the trade receivables and adjusted if
required. The ECL model is reviewed on a quarterly basis.

Provision for employees’ defined benefit plans - note 5.11 and 24

Defined benefit plans are provided for all employees of the Group. These
calculations require assumptions to be made of future outcomes, the principal ones
being in respect of increases in remuneration and the discount rate used to convert
future cash flows to current values. The assumptions used vary for the different plans
as they are determined by independent actuaries annually.

Cost primarily represents the increase in actuarial present value of the obligation for
benefits earned on employees service during the year and the interest on the net
liability/(asset) in respect of employee's service in previous years. Calculations are
sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions.

viii) Provision for current and deferred tax - note 5.16 and 39

In making the estimate for tax payable, the Group takes into account applicable tax
laws, the decisions taken by the appellate authorities on certain issues in the past
and professional advice of tax consultant of the Group.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses and credits to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which such losses and
credits can be ulilised. Significant management judgment is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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ix) Provisions and contingencies - notes 5.15 and 30

The management exercises judgment in measuring and recognising provisions and
exposures to contingent liabilities related to pending litigations or other outstanding
claims. Judgment is necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending claim will
succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of the financial
settlement.

x) Estimation of lease term and incremental borrowing rate for lease liabilities and
right of use assets - notes 5.2, 5.10, 5.12, 7 and 22

IFRS 16 requires the Group to assess the lease term as the non-cancellable lease
term in line with the lease contract together with the period for which the Group has
extension options which the Group is reasonably certain to exercise and the periods
for which the Group has termination options for which the Group is not reasonably
certain to exercise those termination options.

A significant portion of the lease contracts included within Group's lease portfolio
includes lease contracts which are extendable through mutual agreement between
the Group and the lessor or lease contracts which are cancellable by the Group on
immediately or on short notice. In assessing the lease term for the adoption of IFRS
16, the Group concluded that these cancellable future lease periods should be
included within the lease term in determining the lease liability upon initial
recognition. The reasonably certain period used to determine the lease term is based
on facts and circumstances related to the underlying leased asset and lease
contracts and after consideration of business plan of the Group which incorporates
economic, potential demand of customers and technological changes.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except as otherwise stated in respective accounting policies notes.

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding
Company, consolidated financial statements of CSM and the financial statements of FSM
as at and for the year ended September 30, 2024. The Holding Company's direct
interest, as at September 30, 2024, in CSM was 47.93% (2023: 47.93%) and in FSM
was 82.49% (2023: 82.49%).

Investments in Associated Companies, as defined in the Companies Act, 2017, are
accounted for by the equity method.

Non-controlling interest is calculated on the basis of their proportionate share in the net
assets of the Subsidiary Companies.

Subsidiary is an entity over which the Holding Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Holding
Company controls another entity. The Holding Company also assesses existence of
control where it does not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to govern
the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto control may
arise in circumstances where the size of the Holding Company’'s voting rights relative to
the size and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders give the Holding Company the
power to govern the financial and operating policies, etc.

Subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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4.1

4.2

4.3

All significant inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from
inter-company transactions that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The reporting period end of Sub-subsidiaries is June 30, 2024. The Sub-subsidiaries
financial statements used for preparation of consolidated financial statements
corresponds with period of the Group.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND
PRONOUNCEMENTS

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group:

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting
standards which are mandatory for the Group's annual accounting periods which began
on October 01, 2023. However, these do not have any significant impact on the Group's
financial reporting.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting
standards that are not yet effective

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting
standards that will be mandatory for the Group's annual accounting periods beginning on
or after October 01, 2024. However, these will not have any material impact on the
Group's financial reporting and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.

IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes
(the Guidance) issued by ICAP

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) issued the aforementioned
Guidance through Circular No. 07 / 2024 dated May 15, 2024. In light of the said
Guidance, as the minimum taxes and final taxes are not calculated on the 'taxable
income’ as defined in IAS 12 (Income Taxes) but calculated on turnover or other basis
(as per relevant sections of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance);
accordingly, minimum taxes and final taxes should be accounted for under IAS 37
(Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets) / IFRIC 21 (Levies) as levies
(though these are charged under tax law) and not under IAS 12 as income taxes. Based
on the Guidance, the minimum taxes under the Ordinance are hybrid taxes, which
comprise of a component within the scope of IAS 12 and a component within the scope of
IFRIC 21.

Accordingly, the impact has been incorporated in these financial statements
retrospectively in accordance with the requirement of International Accounting Standard
(IAS 8) — ‘Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors’. There has
been no effect on the Statement of Financial Position, Earnings per share and Statement
of Changes in Equity as a result of this change. The impact of the above change has
been tabulated below:
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5.1
(a)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements are set-out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Property, plant and equipment
The Holding Company and FSM
Measurement

Buildings on leasehold and freehold land and plant, machinery and equipment are shown
at fair value, based on valuations carried-out with sufficient regularity by external
independent Valuers, less subsequent amortisation / depreciation.

Any accumulated amortisation / depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the
revalued amount of the asset. The remaining property, plant and equipment, except
freehold land and capital work-in-progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of items.

Freehold land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Holding Company and FSM and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are taken to statement
of profit or loss during the financial year in which these are incurred.
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(b)

Revaluation

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
are recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves
in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously
recognised in statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in profit or loss.
Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all
other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year, the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to profit or loss
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from the
revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment to retained earnings.

Depreciation

Depreciation on operating fixed assets, except leasehold land, is taken to statement of
profit or loss using the reducing balance method so as to write-off the depreciable amount
of an asset over its remaining useful life at the rates stated in note 6.1. Leasehold land is
amortised over the lease term using the straight-line method.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the date the
asset acquired or capitalised has become available for use. Depreciation of an asset
ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held-for-sale and the date
that the asset is derecognized.

Disposal

Gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in other income in the statement of profit or loss. In case of
the sale or retirement of a revalued property, plant and equipment, the attributable
revaluation surplus remaining in the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment
is transferred directly to unappropriated profit / accumulated loss.

Judgment and estimates

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed on a regular
basis. The effect of any change in estimates is accounted for on a prospective basis.

CSM and its Subsidiaries

Owned assets

Operating fixed assets except freehold land, leasehold land, buildings and roads, plant &
machinery and electric installations are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount, whereas leasehold land
buildings & roads, plant & machinery and electric installations are stated at revalued
amount less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluation is carried out
by independent expert. CSM and its Subsidiaries carry out revaluations periodically,
considering the change in circumstances and assumptions from latest revaluation.
Capital work-in-progress and major spare parts and standby equipment are stated at
cost. Cost in relation to certain plant and machinery items include borrowing cost related
to the financing of major projects during construction phase.
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5.2

Subsequent cost, if reliably measurable, are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as separate asset as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the cost will flow to CSM and its Subsidiaries. The
carrying amount of any replaced parts as well as other repair and maintenance costs are
charged to statement of profit or loss during the period in which these are incurred.

Increase in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of freehold land, leasehold land,
buildings & roads, plant & machinery and electric installations are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in shareholders’ equity under the heading
revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment. To the extent that the increase
reverses a decrease previously recognised in statement of profit or loss, the increase is
first recognised in statement of profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases
of the same asset are first recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of the
remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to statement
of profit or loss.

Depreciation on operating assets is calculated using the reducing balance method to
allocate their cost over their estimated useful life at the rates specified in note 6.1.
Depreciation for factory assets is charged to cost of sales while depreciation for other
property, plant and equipment is charged to administrative and general expenses and
selling and distribution expenses on actual usage basis.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the date asset
is available for intended use till date of disposal.

The gain or loss on disposal of an asset, calculated as difference between the sale
proceeds and carrying amount of the asset, is recognised as other income in statement of
profit or loss for the year.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. It
consists of expenditure incurred and advances made in respect of operating fixed
assets, capital stores and intangible assets in the course of their acquisition, construction
and installation.

Right-of-use assets

CSM and its Subsidiaries recognise right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the
lease i.e. the date the underlying assets are available for use. Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities except plant and machinery for which CSM and
its Subsidiaries have elected to use the revaluation model.

The cost comprises the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities:

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs; and

- restoration costs,

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life
and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If CSM and its Subsidiaries are reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use assets are depreciated over the
underlying assets' useful life.
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5.3

5.4

5.5
(a)

(b)

5.6
(@)

Investment property

Property not held for own use or for sale in the ordinary course of business is classified
as investment property. The Group uses cost model for valuation of its investment
property; freehold land has been valued at cost whereas buildings on freehold land have
been valued at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss.

Depreciation on investment property is taken to statement of profit or loss applying the
reducing balance method at the rates stated in note 8. Depreciation on additions is
charged from the date the asset acquired or capitalised has become available for use.
Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as
held-for-sale and the date that the asset is derecognised. Impairment loss or its reversal,
if any, is taken to statement of profit or loss.

Investments

Investments in equity instruments of Associated Companies are stated at the Group's
share of their underlying net assets using the equity method.

Investments available-for-sale represent investments, which are not held for trading. All
investments are initially recognised at cost, being fair value of the consideration given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these investments are re-measured at fair value (quoted
market price). Any gain or loss from a change in the fair value of investments available-
for-sale is recognised in other comprehensive income / (loss) as unrealised, unless sold,
collected or otherwise disposed-off, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
at which time cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the equity is included in the
statement of profit or loss for the year.

Stores and spares

The Holding Company and FSM

Stores and spares are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of
inventory 1s based on moving average cost. ltems in fransit are stated at cost
accumulated upto the reporting date. Carrying amounts of stores and spares are
reviewed on a regular basis and provision is made for identified obsolete and slow
moving items.

CSM

Stores and spares are stated at cost less allowance for obsolete and slow moving items.
Cost is determined using weighted average method. ltems in transit are valued at cost
comprising invoice value and other related charges incurred up to the date of the
statement of financial position date.

Stock-in-trade
The Holding Company

i) Stock of manufactured products is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Molasses inventory is valued at net realisable value.

ii) Costin relation to finished goods and work-in-process represents the annual average
manufacturing cost, which comprises of prime cost and appropriate production
overheads.

iii) Net realisable value signifies the selling price in the ordinary course of business less
cost of completion and cost necessary to be incurred to effect such sale.
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(b)

5.7
(a)

(b)

5.8

59

Judgments and estimates

Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical
experience and selling goods of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in market conditions. A review is made periodically on inventories for excess
inventories, obsolescence and declines in net realisable value and an allowance is
recorded against the inventory balances for any such declines.

CSM

Sugar and ethanol are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the average manufacturing cost method. The cost of finished goods
and work in process comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads.

Purchased molasses is stated at lower of cost and net realisable value whereas cost of
own produced molasses, a by product, is determined on the basis of average cost of
molasses purchased from third parties.

The specific costs of bagasse, a by-product cannot be determined. Accordingly, it is
stated at net realizable value (NRV).

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
cost of completion and costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale,

Trade debts and other receivables

The Holding Company

Trade debts are initially recognised at original invoice amount, which is the fair value of
consideration to be received in future and subsequently measured at cost less allowance
for Expected Credit Loss (ECL). Carrying amounts of trade debts and other receivables
are assessed at each reporting date and allowance is made for doubtful debts and
receivables when collection of the amount is no longer probable. Debts and receivables
considered irrecoverable are written-off.

CSM

Trade debts are recognised and carried at the original invoice amounts, being the fair
value, less an allowance for uncollectible amounts, if any. For measurement of loss
allowance for trade debts, CSM applies IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure the
expected credit losses.

Short term investments (at fair value through profit or loss)

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are those which are acquired for
generating a profit from short-term fluctuation in prices. All investments are initially
recognised at cost, being fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these investments are re-measured at fair value (quoted market price). Any
gain or loss from a change in the fair value is recognised in income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with banks in current, deposit and
saving accounts, bank overdrafts and cash / running finance. Bank overdrafts are shown
in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.
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5.10 Borrowings and borrowing costs

5.11
(a)

(b)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
rate method.

Borrowing costs, which are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other
borrowing costs are charged to statement of profit or loss.

Staff retirement benefits
The Holding Company
Defined contribution plan

The Holding Company is operating a provident fund scheme for all its permanent
employees; equal monthly contribution to the fund is made at the rate of 9% of the basic
salaries both by the employees and the Holding Company.

Defined benefit plan

The Holding Company operates an un-funded retirement gratuity scheme for its eligible
employees. Provision for gratuity is made annually to cover obligation under the scheme
in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. Latest actuarial valuation was
conducted on September 30, 2024 on the basis of projected unit credit method by an
independent Actuary.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which these occur and past-service costs are recognised immediately in the statement of
profit or loss.

CSM and its Subsidiaries

CSM and its Subsidiaries operate provident funds and an un-funded gratuity schemes for
their employees as detailed below:

Defined contribution plan

CSM and its Subsidiaries operate recognised contributory provident funds for their
permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions are made by CSM and its
Subsidiaries and the employees to the fund at the specified rate of basic salary and
charged to the statement of profit or loss. Investments out of provident fund have been
made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of Companies Act, 2017 and
applicable rules.

Defined benefit plan

CSM and its Subsidiaries operate unfunded gratuity schemes covering eligible
employees under their employment contract. The liability for gratuity is recognised on the
basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method. The latest actuarial
valuations were conducted on September 30, 2024.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited in other comprehensive income in the year in which
they arise. Past service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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5.12 Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or if that rate cannot be readily determined, incremental borrowing rate of CSM and
its Subsidiaries. Generally, CSM and its Subsidiaries use its incremental borrowing rate
as the discount rate.

Lease payments in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
a) fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement date;

c) amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

d) the exercise price under a purchase option that CSM and its Subsidiaries are
reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if CSM
and its Subsidiaries are reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and
penalties for early termination of a lease unless CSM and its Subsidiaries are
reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, if there is a change in CSM and its Subsidiaries estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if CSM and its
Subsidiaries change their assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option.

5.13 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables including payable to related parties are carried at
cost, which is the fair value of consideration to be paid in the future for goods and/or
services received, whether or not billed to the Group.

5.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

5.15 Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when the Group

- has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group; or

- has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, or the amount of obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

5.16 Taxation

Taxation comprises of current tax and deferred tax.
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517

5.18

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognized in consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

The Group designate the amount calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate
as an income tax within the scope of IAS 12 'Income Taxes' and recognise it as current
income tax expense. The amount calculated not on the basis of taxable income, is then
recognized as a levy falling under the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year determined in
accordance with prevailing law for taxation on income at the applicable rates of taxation
after taking into account tax credits and tax rebates, if any. Income tax expense is
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income.

CSM and its Subsidiaries recognise provision for income tax based on best current
estimates. However, where the final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences impact the income tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

CSM and its Subsidiaries take into account the current income tax law and decisions
taken by the taxation authorities. Instances where the views of CSM and its Subsidiaries
differ from the income tax department at the assessment stage and where CSM and its
Subsidiaries consider that their view on items of material nature is in accordance with
law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Deferred

Deferred income tax is recognised using the statement of financial position liability
method on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts appearing in the financial statements. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
deductible temporary differences will reverse in the future and taxable income will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax

Deferred tax asset and liability is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have
been enacted. Deferred tax is charged or credited to income except in the case of items
credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

Dividend and revenue reserve appropriation

Dividend and movement in revenue reserves are recognised in the financial statements
in the period in which these are approved.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example land, are not subject to amortisation
or depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
depreciation/ amortisation are reviewed for impairment at each statement of financial
position date or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Reversals of the
impairment losses are restricted to the extent that assets carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss has been recognised. An impairment loss or reversal
of impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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5.19

2.20

5.21

Revenue recognition

The Group recognizes revenue at point of time when control of product is transferred to
customer. Control is considered to be transferred in case of local sales when the finished
goods are directly uplifted by customer from the warehouse or when it is delivered by the
Group at customer premises. In case of export sales, control is considered to be
transferred when the finished goods are shipped to the customer,

Revenue is measured based on the consideration agreed with the customer and
excludes sales tax / government levies and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue is presented net of discounts, rebates and returns.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made either at advance or
with a credit term of upto 30 days, which is consistent with the market price.

Contract assets

Contract assets arise when the Group performs its performance obligations by
transferring goods to a customer before the customer pays its consideration or before
payment is due.

Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Group to transfer goods to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Group transfers goods, a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs its performance obligations under the contract.

Other income
The Group recognises following in other income:
(i) Income on deposit / saving accounts using the effective yield method.

(ii) Dividend income when the right to receive dividend is established.

(iii) Income from other non-recurring goods and services is recognised when the control
s transferred and performance obligations are fulfilled.

Development expenditure

Expenditure incurred on development of sugar cane and beet is expensed in the year of
Incurrence.

Deferred government grant

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grant includes any benefit earned on account of a government loan obtained
at below-market rate of interest. The loan is recognised and measured in accordance with
IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. The benefit of the below-market rate of interest is
measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan determined in
accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received.

Government grant that has been awarded for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the entity
qualifies to receive it.

106



5.22

5.23

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated in Pakistan Rupees using the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated in functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing
at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All the
financial assets are derecognised at the time when the Group loses control of the
contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial liabilities are
derecognised at the time when they are extinguished that is, when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any gains or losses on de-
recognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss .

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
i) amortised cost where the effective interest rate method is applied;

ii) fair value through profit or loss; and

lif) fair value through other comprehensive income.,

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in statement of
profit or loss or other comprehensive income (OCI). For investment in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), The Group reclassifies debt
investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Reqular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Further, financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs
that are directly aftributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in statement of profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business mode!
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group can classify its debt instruments:
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i)

i)

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where the contractual terms of
the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in statement of
profit or loss and presented in other income together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt securities, where the contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and the
objective of the Group's business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
statement of profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to statement of profit or
loss and recognised in other income. Interest income from these financial assels is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other income and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and presented in finance income / cost in the
period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the
Group's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to statement of profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised in statement of profit or loss as other
income when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assess on a historical as well as forward-looking basis, the expected credit
loss (ECL) as associated with its debt instruments, trade debts, short term investments,
deposits and other receivables carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:
- Trade debts
- Loans and advances
- Trade deposits and other receivables

- Bank balances
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General approach for loans and advances, trade deposits, other receivables and
bank balances

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a defauit) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information ( factors that are specific to the
counterparty, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of
money where appropriate). As for the exposure at default for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date. Loss allowances
are forward looking, based on 12 months expected credit losses where there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk rating, otherwise allowances are based on
lifetime expected losses.

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. The
probability is determined by the risk of default which is applied to the cash flow estimates.
In the absence of a change in credit rating, allowances are recognised when there is
reduction in the net present value of expected cash flows. On a significant increase in
credit risk, allowances are recognised without a change in the expected cash flows,
although typically expected cash flows do also change; and expected credit losses are
rebased from 12 months to lifetime expectations.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an on-going basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.

The following indicators are considered while assessing credit risk

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the debtor's ability to
meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor,
and

- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the
quality of third-party guarantees, if applicable.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit
risk management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, in case of trade debts, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a debt is more than 365 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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Credit - impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Simplified approach for trade debts

The Group recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The
measurement of ECL reflects:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a
range of possible outcomes; and

- reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Trade debts with individually significant balance are separately assessed for ECL
measurement. All other trade debts are grouped and assessed collectively based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit losses on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix approach based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for cases where evidence
of significant increases in credit risk at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

- nature of financial instruments;

- past-due status;

- nature, size and industry of debtors; and
- external credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each
group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Recognition of loss allowance

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account, except for investments in debt instruments that are measured at
FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrying
amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.
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b)

i)

i)

Write-off

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all
practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. The assessment of no reasonable expectation of recovery is based on
unavailability of debtor's sources of income or assets to generate sufficient future cash
flows to repay the amount.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off result in impairment gains.

Financial Liabilities
Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:

i) fair value through profit or loss; and

ii) other financial liabilities.

The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of other financial
liabilities also include directly attributable transaction costs. The subsequent
measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value
through profit or loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability upon
recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method and are measured at
present value. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss for the year, when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through effective interest rate amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilittes when and only when the Group’'s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amount and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

- in the principal market for the asset or liability; or

- in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market is accessible by the Group. The fair value

of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would

use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.
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5.24

5.25

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities;

- Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements at
fair value on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

The Board determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement and for non-recurring measurement. External valuers may be involved for
valuation of significant assets and significant liabilities. For the purpose of fair value
disclosures, the Group determines classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy, as explained above.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
Is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.
The management has determined that the Group has two reportable segments, i.e. sugar
and ethanol.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2024 2023
Note Rupees in thousand
Operating fixed assets - tangible 6.1 27,594,903 23,253,239
Capital work-in-progress 6.13 2,053,939 3,543,137
Advance against lease vehicle 455 -

29,649,297 26,796,376
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6.2

6.3

6.4

During the year ended September 30, 2024, management assessed the Property, Plant

and Equipment of WFPL for impairment in respect of triggering events as specified by

IAS 36 applicable to the non-current assets. Based on the below indicators, an

impairment test has been carried out by the management to determine the recoverable

amount of non-current assets of WFPL:

- Lack of start of operations as per plan envisaged in the agreement between Punjab
Foods Department, Government of Punjab and Whole Foods (Private)
Limited:

- Notice of intent to terminate agreement between Punjab Foods Depariment,
Government of Punjab to Whole Foods (Private) Limited (WFPL) during 2023 which
has been contested by the management of WFPL and they are confident that the
above said notice will be withdrawn.

- Management plans to consider other options

CSM and its subsidiaries has performed an assessment of recoverable value based on
assessment of fair value less cost to sell and value in use of non-current assets of WFPL.
The fair value less cost to sell has been determined by an independent expert.
Management's approach and key assumptions used to determine fair value less cost to
sell to the consolidated financial statements. Based on the same the management has
concluded that there is no need to record an impairment loss in the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year ended September 30, 2024, management assessed the property, plant
and equipment of UWFPL for impairment in respect of triggering events as specified by
JAS 36 applicable to the non-current assets. Based on the below indicators, an
impairment test has been carried out by the management to determine the recoverable
amount of non-current assets of UWFPL:

- Lack of margins, negative gross profits and net liability position;

- Management plans to market their premier brand "Golden crust" as this is the first
year of operations.
Considering the requirements of IAS 36 the Group has assessed the recoverable amount
of the property plant and equipment based on higher of Value In Use (VIU) and fair value
less costs to sell. An external valuation expert has determined the valuation of freehold
land, buildings, plant & machinery and electric installations. The VIU is also determined
on the basis of projected cashflows based on a future business plan approved by the
Board of Directors of the CSM and its subsidiaries for a period of six years from 2025 to
2030. VIU has been assessed on discounted cash flow based valuation methodology
using weighted average cost of capital of 14.54% per annum. In view of foregoing,
management has concluded that there is no need to recognize an impairment loss in the

consolidated financial statements.
Particulars of immovable property of the Holding Company

Covered
Total Area Area

Location Usage of immovable property (squarefeet) | (In square

feet) approx.

4 b

Land - freehold

Saro Shah, Takht Bahi Agricultural 5,378,299 -
Nowshera Road, Mardan  Industrial 999,158
Land - leasehold
Nowshera Road, Mardan  Industrial 5,268,037
6,267,195 807,188

11,645,494 807,188
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6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and buildings) in the name of CSM and its
Subsidiaries are as follows:

Total Area Govered
Location Usage of immovable property Area
(Kanals)
(Kanals)
CSM-1, D.I.LKhan  Factory building 1,111.25 98.86
CSM-2, Ramak Factory building 1,618.65 174.66
Layyah and BhakkaStorage facility 32 4.8
Plot # A-4, Sector, Land for Head Office Building
F-9/G-9, Islamabad 2.0 -
Kings Arcade, 20-A, F-6 markaz,Islamabad 2.49 2.49
Ramak D.l.khan Factory building 64.00 6.00
Ramak D.l.khan Factory building 64.10 14.67
Bhakkar Storage facility 16.00 2.40
Layyah Storage facility 16.0 2.40

Had the revalued fixed assets of the Group been recognised under the cost model, the
carrying values of these assets would have been as follows:

2024 2023

Rupees in thousand
Leasehold land 2,559,760 2,681,002
Freehold land 346,721 339,247
Buildings & roads 2,835,122 992,098
Buildings on leasehold land 742 802
Plant, machinery and equipment 4,602,026 3,586,738
Electric installations 480,457 439,161

10,824,828 8,039,048

The forced sale values of revalued fixed assets of the Group, based on valuations
conducted during 2024 and prior years, are as follows.

2024

Rupees in

thousand
Leasehold land 3,000,000
Freehold land 1,754,172
Buildings & roads 5,945,754
Plant, machinery and equipment 9,901,561
Electric installations 423,358

21,024,845

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company, during the financial year ended
September 30, 2018, had decided to shift the Holding Company's distillery operations
from Mardan to Ramak, Dera Ismail Khan due to easy approach to power and raw
materials. Dismantling, shifting and erection work of distillery was completed during the
financial year ended September 30, 2020.

The Holding Company had availed its option of renewal of leasehold land agreement
expired during the financial year ended September 30, 2008. Buildings on leasehold land,
however, were revalued during the financial years ended September 30, 2009,
September 30, 2011, September 30, 2014, September 30, 2017, September 30, 2020
and September 30, 2023 and revaluation surplus on these assets aggregating
Rs.116.886 million, Rs.17.376 million, Rs.76.240 million, Rs.5.328 million, Rs.99.021
million and Rs.1,345.854 million respectively was incorporated in the books of account.
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Clause 6 of the lease agreement dated July 09, 1947, which was for a period of 60 years,
empowers the Holding Company to renew the lease. On August 10, 2007, the Holding
Company, in terms of the aforesaid clause 6, had exercised the option of renewal of the
lease and indicated its desire to extend the lease for a further period of 60 years
(commencing from January 01, 2008) on such terms as may be agreed between the
parties and invited the legal heirs of the lessor to negotiate the terms of the extended
lease agreement. The legal heirs of the lessor had failed to agree on the terms of the
extended lease; hence, the matter was referred to arbitration.

Two of the legal heirs of the lessor have filed civil suits impugning the validity of
arbitration. These suits are frivolous, barred by law and liable to be dismissed in due
course under relevant provisions of the Arbitration Act, 1940.

The arbitration proceedings were finalised during the financial year ended September 30,
2016 and the Arbitrator (a Senior Advocate of the Supreme Court of Pakistan) announced
the award by extending the lease term for a further period of 60 years. The same was
filed before the Senior Civil Judge, Mardan to make it 'Rule of the Court'.

6.10 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows: 2024 2023
Rupees in thousand
Cost of sales 1,870,794 1,406,281
Administrative expenses 208,608 93,569
2,079,402 1,499,850
6.11 Disposal of vehicle of the Group
. Accumulated  Book Sale Mode of
Particulars Cost deprociation  value proceeds Gain disposal Particulars of buyer
-------------- -Rupees in thousand- <+« s« sssnanans
2024
Vehicles
Toyota Land Cruiser W5ty 26135 13716 19825 6,209 | Company policy Mr. Abbas Sarfaraz Khan (the director of the company|
Toyata Corolla 25044 153 1,063 1,267 24| —do—  Mr Al Hamza (employes)
Toyola Corolia 2504 g 1566 1028 1,267 69| ——do——  Muhammad Arshad (employes)
Toyota Corolla 22024 1375 B2r 1,101 4| —do—-  Muhammad Shahzad Anjum (employes)
Toyola Yars 2744 5 1548 1195 1,372 1T7|  ——do—— W Akbar AR (employes)
Toyota Hilux Revo 4065 3047 469 £.000 5.031 | Insurance policy 1G] General Insurance Limited
KIA Spartage 474 ¢ 2811 1923 2,367 444 | Company policy  Mr. Hameed Ur Rehman (employee)
Honda Chvic 31Ty 1,504 1,183 1,588 308 | —do—-  Mr.Javed Anwar (empioyee}
Honda BR-Y 33424 2087 1,285 1,671 386| ——=do——  ir. Amir Ur Rehman (employes)
Honda BR-Y 3053 g 1610 1,243 1,566 33|  —do——  Mir Khaiid Mehmood (empioyee)
Honda BR-V 2353 4 1405 udg 1,280 341 —go—  Muhammad Shahzad Anjum (employee)
Stzuki Swilt 1734 ¢ 1083 651 873 22| ~——do——  Muhammad Athar Hussain (employee)
Suzuki Cultus 201 1241 773 1,067 294 | wefOe—e  Mr, Tarig Alam (empioyes)
Suzuki Cultus 1834 o 1.038 856 1,102 46| ~—do——-  Mr Javed Akhtar (ampioyee)
Suzuki Cultus 1,445 u 802 543 123 180 —do——-  Mr Adil Haroon Shah (employes)
Suzuki Cultus 1624 g 870 654 812 158 —do——-  Mr. Zeeshan Ahmed (employee)
Suzki Cultus 2,017 473 1,544 1,876 432 | Insurance policy  1GI General Insurance Limited
B388 & 50977 30411 46 027 15,616
Various assels having
net book value upto
Rs. 500,000 each 8,550 225 6,315 6428 13 Various parties
89,338 53212 36,726 52,455 15,729
e 51976 30788 21208 29800 852
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6.12 In case of CSM and its Subsidiaries, property plant and equipment with aggregate
carrying value of Rs.16,098,014 thousand (2023: Rs.14,649,347 thousand) are subject to
first joint pari passu charge as defined in note 20. CSM and its Subsidiaries are not
allowed to pledge these assets as security for other borrowings or sell them to another
entity.

6.13 Capital work-in-progress of the Group

Advance

e gaymens L Unioated

Plant,
Lindand machinery Eleciic  Owned Vehicles- Capital

: ments fo agamst land - il . Totdl
buikdings ml::m installations vehicles leased  stoes Em e ml o fofures u::hn aquipment
and buidings
Rupees in thoysand
s 2l Octaber 01, 2021 10550 T 4 I UMW W3 MBI B0 : : - 0208
Addtions during the year MG UAMTA M6 15N 1086 6L BILAM 2000 : : - 4109
Capitalised during the year (B0  (AT0026) (%) (3% (13550) (262263 (1 025I%) : : - - [T
Other adjustments He o (MM . - - - 1352 - - : - 13840
BabncpasatSeptember 0, 203 T2ETI0 1AMEN  FRAM . AW HTM 180W .00 . . A L)
As 3t Octaber 01, 2020 15T 184590 e - A WM 1280 000 - - 5.
Additions during the year EALY 0 A SO 1 11 O/ 2 S - 11500 W 1M $§ 2N
Capiglised during the year (L3002} (tASLN05)  (19B3%6) (66 (o718 (LGS (A (100K - : - [3508.0%)
Other adjustments - - (8781 - - SICE . : - -

Balance a8 ot Saptember 30, 2004 100 LAMNT R0 M RIS seup  EEM 104568 W 1 & L058

6.14 Additions in land and building of CSM and its Subsidiaries include Rs. 68,523,422 (2023:
Rs. Nil) capitalised in respect of borrowing cost on long term loans obtained for the
purpose of construction of building and civil works.

6.15 This amount mainly include to fabrication material issues to third party contractor for
further processing.

6.16 These mainly includes advances against plant and machinery and are in the normal
course of business.

6.17 This include borrowings cost capitalised amounting to Rs. 91.497 million incurred on bank
borrowings at an effective rate of 20.58% to 24.41%.
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RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

it Building and
Vehicles  machinery and 8 Total
: tanks
equipment
Rupees in thousand-
As at October 01, 2023
Cost or revalued amount 360,811 60,580 155,574 576,965
Accumulated depreciation (121,482) (18,994) (108,287) (248,763)
Book value 239,329 41,586 47,287 328,202
Additions 103,577 - - 103,577
Remeasurement during the year - - 6,081 6,081
Transferred to owned assets
Cost (78,784) s (78,784)
Accumulated depreciation 48,896 - 48,896
Book value (29,888) - (29,888)
Depreciation charge (56,469) (4,159) (21,341) (81,969)
Closing book value 256,549 37,427 32,027 326,003
Annual rate of depreciation (%) 20 10 20-50
As at September 30, 2024
Cost or revalued amount 385,604 60,580 161,655 607,839
Accumulated depreciation (129,055) (23,153) (129,628) (281,836)
Book value 256,549 37,427 32,027 326,003
2024 2023
Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows: (Rupees in thousand)
Cost of sales 4,159 4,621
Selling and distribution expenses 17,453 19,446
Administrative and general expenses 60,357 52,858
81,969 76,925
INVESTMENT PROPERTY
; Buildings on
Particulars Freehold land Total
freehold land
Rupees in thousand
As at September 30, 2022:
Cost 14,544 63,708 78,252
Accumulated depreciation - 53,427 53,427
Book value 14,544 10,281 24 825
Year ended September 30, 2023:
Depreciation charge - 282 282
Book value 14,544 9,999 24 543
Year ended September 30, 2024:
Depreciation charge - 4,910 4,910
Book value as at September 30, 2024 14,544 5,089 19,633

Depreciation rate (%)

5-10

M
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8.1

8.2

These represent free-hold land situated at PIDC Karachi having an area of 8,229 square
yards. This also include free-hold land and building having an area of 2,100 square yards
situated at F-6 Islamabad and 15,555 square yards situated at Risalpur Cantt.

Fair value of the investment property, based on the management's estimation, as at
September 30, 2024 was Rs.320 million (2023: Rs.320 million).

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 2024 2023 2024 2023

Share-holding (%) Rupees in thousand
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

QUOTED:

Arpak International Investments Ltd. (AllL)

229,900 (2023: 229,900) ordinary shares
of Rs.10 each 5.75 5.75 19,511 22,335

Market value Rs.11.782 million
(2023: Rs.14.829 million)

UN-QUOTED:
National Computers (Pvt.) Ltd. (NCPL)

14,450 (2023: 14,450) ordinary
shares of Rs.100 each 48.17 48.17 - -

- Value of investments based on net assets
shown in the un-audited financial
statements for the year ended
June 30, 2013 - Rs. Nil (note 9.2)

Premier Board Mills Ltd. (FBML)

47,002 (2023: 47,002) ordinary
shares of Rs.10 each 0.83 0.83 6,521 6,454

- Value of investments based on net assets
shown in the audited financial statements
for the year ended June 30, 2024
Rs.6.544 million (2023: Rs.6.477 million)

Azlak Enterprises (Pvt.) Ltd. (AEPL)

200,000 (2023: 200,000) ordinary
shares of Rs.10 each 40.00 40,00 177,885 153,682

- Value of investments based on net assets
shown in the un-audited financial statements for
the year ended June 30, 2024 Rs.889.421 million
(2023: Rs.153.682 million )

203,917 182,471
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9.1

9.2

9.3

NCPL has no known assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022 and
has also seized its operations. NCPL, on January 15, 2015, has filed an application with
the Joint Registrar, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for striking-off its
name from the Register of Companies under the Companies (Easy Exit) Regulations,
2014.

Investments in equity instruments of Associated Companies

2024 2023
Rupees in thousand
Opening balance - cost 5,638 5,638
Add: post acquisition profit brought forward 176,833 166,364
182,471 172,002
Add: share for the year:
- profit before tax - net 16,021 11,897
- other comprehensive income 11,776 9,701
- items directly credited in equity 189 497
Less: taxation - net (6,474) (7.626)
21,512 10,469
Balance as at 30 September, 203,983 182,471

AlIL was incorporated in Pakistan on July 26, 1977 as a Public Company and its shares
are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. It is principally engaged in investment business
of various forms.

The summary of financial information of AllL based on its audited financial statements for
the year ended June 30, 2024 is as follows:

Summarised statement of financial position

Non-current assets 282,655 348,510
Current assets 69,425 51,879
352,080 400,389
Non-current liabilities 955 217
Current liabilities 11,808 11,729
12,763 11,946
Net assets 339,317 388,443
Reconciliation to carrying amount
Opening net assets 388,443 363,466
Loss for the year (249,560) (76,304)
Effects of items directly credited in equity
by Associated Companies 2,148 8,645
Other comprehensive income for the year 198,286 92,636
Closing net assets 339,317 388,443

The Holding Company's share percentage
5.75% (2023: 5.75%)

The Holding Company's share 19,511 22,335
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9.4

9.5

2024 2023

Summarised statement of profit or loss Rupees in thousand
Income

Loss before taxation

21,866 15.781

(246,771) (74,829)

Loss after taxation (249,560) (76,304)

PBML was incorporated in Pakistan on May 12, 1980 as a Public Company and it is
evaluating certain proposals for setting-up some Industrial Unit.

The summary of financial information of PBML based on its audited financial statements

for the year ended June 30, 2024 is as follows:

Summarised statement of financial position

Non-current assets 700,676 723,042

Current assets 90,403 61,222
791,079 784,264

Current liabilities 5,383 6,670

Net assets 785,696 ) 777,594

Reconciliation to carrying amount

Opening net assets 777,594 683,479

(Loss) / profit for the year (6,368) 65,283

Other comprehensive income for the year 14,470 28,832

Closing net assets 785,696 777,594

The Holding Company's share percentage

0.83% (2023: 0.83%)
The Holding Company'’s share 6,521 6,454

Summarised statement of profit or loss

Income 19,434 16,952

(Loss) / profit before taxation (3,627) _ 66,646
(Loss) / profit after taxation (6,368) 65,283

AEPL was incorporated in Pakistan on May 16, 1968 as a Private Limited Company and it
is engaged in providing bulk storage facilities for industrial alcohol and other liquid
chemical products.

The summary of financial information of AEPL based on its audited financial statements

for the year ended June 30, 2024 is as follows:
Summarised statement of financial position

Non-current assets 256,996 257,377
Current assets 256,389 198,174
513,385 455,551

Non-current liabilities 13,294 16,277
Current liabilities 55,378 95,069
68,672 71,346

Net assets 444713 384,205
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10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

11.

11.1

Reconciliation to carrying amount
Note

Opening net assets
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Closing net assets

The Holding Company's share percentage
40% (2023: 40%)

The Holding Company's share
Summarised statement of profit or loss
Storage and handling income

Profit before taxation

Profit after taxation

STORES AND SPARES

Stores and spares
Less:

- provision for obsolete items - CSM
- impairment loss - FSM

2024 2023

Rupees in thousand
384,205 363,574
59,871 20,293
637 338
444,713 384,205
177,885 153,682
109,416 108,550
75,600 39,117
59,871 20,293
977,655 1,041,933
38,385 53,980
25,928 25,178

(64,313) (79,158)

913,342 962,775

FSM has not carried-out manufacturing operations during the current and prior years. The
management, during the financial year ended September 30, 2024, had carried out a
detailed exercise to identify obsolete / damaged stores and spares inventory. Carrying

values of the year-end stores and spares inventory were adjusted accordingly.

Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not

distinguishable.

In case of CSM, a balance amounting Rs.15.595 million (2023:Rs. 6.713 million) has

been written off against provision for obsolete items during the current year.

STOCK-IN-TRADE
Finished goods

- sugar
- molasses

- ethanol

- bagasse

- wheat flour

Work-in-process
Raw material - wheat (UWFPL)

11.2

1,917,574 3,376,656
1,117,556 1,129,284
1,028,872 742,952
107,203 36,569
37,865 -
4,209,070 5,285,461
52,248 26,837
725,349 200,767
4,986,667 5,613,065

In case of the Holding Company, sugar inventory as at September 30, 2024 was stated at
net realisable value; the amount charged to statement of profit or loss in respect of

inventory write-drown to net
approximately.

realisable value worked-out to Rs.88.838 million
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11.2

11.3

11.4

A

12.1

12.2

12.3

13.

In case of CSM and its Subsidiaries, certain short term and long term borrowings are

secured by way of collateral charge on stock-in-trade.

In case of CSM, the closing stock of sugar, net of 10% to 15% margin, having carrying
value of Rs 5,045411 thousand (2023 : Rs 3,439,411 thousand ) has been pledged
against cash finance obtained from commercial and Islamic banks ( for details, refer to

note 27).

In case of the CSM, raw material - wheat as at September 30, 2024 was stated at net
realisable value; the amount charged to statement of profit or loss in respect of inventory
write-drown to net realisable value worked-out to Rs.284.742 million approximately.

TRADE DEBTS 2024 2023
Note Rupees in thousand
Considered good

Due from related parties - 450
Others 459,417 1,250,973
Considered doubtful 2,043 3,333
461,460 1,254,756
Less: loss allowance 12.3 21,012 3,333
440,448 1,251,423

In case of CSM, maximum aggregate amount receivable from related parties at the end

of any month during the year was Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. 450 thousand).

The ageing analysis of trade debts due from related parties in CSM are as follows:

Upto 6 months - 450
More than 6 months - -
- 450
Movement in loss allowance
Opening balance 3,333 1,782
Provision for the year 17,679 1,551
Closing balance 21,012 3,333
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Advances to (unsecured and considered good):
- employees 13.1 21,640 20,730
- suppliers and contractors 1,086,372 1,069,081
Letters of credit 43,529 11,156
1,151,541 1,100,967
Less:
- provision for doubtful advances 28,838 28,838
- loss allowance 13.2 905 905
29,743 29,743

1,121,798

1,071,224
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13.1 In case of CSM, these include balances of Rs.15,007 thousand (2023: Rs.15,007
thousand) secured against retirement benefits of respective employees.

13.2 Movement in loss allowance 2024 2023
Rupees in thousand

Opening balance 905 905
ECL for the year - -
Closing balance 905 905
14. TRADE DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sugar export subsidy receivable 308,510 308,510
Prepayments 14,136 15,433
Excise duty deposits 136 136
Gas infrastructure development

cess paid under protest - refundable 3,018 3,018
Lease rentals receivable from an Associated

Company (Premier Board Mills Ltd. - PBM ) - 2,140
Guarantees issued 15,000 15,000
Trade deposits - 8,876
Deposits against decretal amounts 20,377 2,862
Accrued mark-up on term deposit receipts 50,801 1,920
Insurance claim receivable - 33,746
Other receivables 19,911 6,563

431,889 397,804
Less: loss allowance (305,519) (155,782)
126,370 242,022

141 These have been deposited with the Commissioner for Workers' Compensation and
Authority under the Payment of Wages Act, 2013 for Mardan.
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14.2 Movement in loss allowance of export subsidy is as follows:

2024 2023
Note Rupees in thousand
Opening balance 155,782 90,369
Loss allowance for the year 149,737 65,413
Closing balance 305,519 155,782
15. TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT
Income tax refundable, advance tax and tax
deducted at source net of tax provisions 465,250 86,447
Sales tax refundable 1,649 849
466,899 87,296
16. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS - At fair
value through profit or loss
Al Habib Cash Fund (formerly First Habib
Cash Fund)
Opening balance - 100,402 Units
(2023: 247,315 Units) 10,305 25,237
Gain on redemption / re-measurement to
fair value 574 2,819
Units redeemed during the year - 105,520 Units
(2023: 173,665 Units) (10,801) (17,751)
Closing balance - 726 Units (2023: 100,402 Units) 78 10,305
17. BANK BALANCES
Cash at banks on:
- PLS accounts 17.1 981 20,887
- saving accounts 17.2 121,135 33,190
- deposit accounts 17.3 (a) and 17.7 458,734 458,734
- current accounts 17.4 538,748 430,800
- deposits with a non-banking finance
company - unsecured 11.9 - 12,000
1,119,598 955,611
Less: provision for doubtful bank balance 17.6 5,000 5,000
1,114,598 950,611

17.1 These include Rs.476 thousand (2023: Rs.402 thousand) in security deposit account.

17.2 PLS and deposit accounts during the year carried profit / mark-up at the rates ranging
from 13.50% to 24.87% (2023: 13.50% to 24.41%) per annum.

17.3

(a) These include deposits amounting Rs.3.734 million (2023: Rs.3.734 million), which are
under lien of a bank against guarantees issued by it in favour of Sui Northern Gas
Pipelines Lid. on behalf of the Holding Company.
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(b)

17.4

17.5

17.6

17.7

18.

18.1

In case of CSM, these include term deposits carrying profit at the rates ranging from
20.50% to 20.60% (2023: 20.00% to 20.55%) per annum and having maturity of 30 days.

In case of CSM, these include dividend account balance of Rs.1,225 thousand (2023:
Rs.460 thousand). These balances are maintained in separate non interest bearing
current bank accounts.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) winding-up petition filed
against Innovative Investment Bank Limited was decided by the Lahore High Court,
Lahore (LHC) and LHC appointed Joint Official Liquidators (JOLs). The Holding Company
and FSM, as per the LHC's orders upto November, 2020, have received three tranches
aggregating Rs.33 million. The remaining amount of Rs.3 million has been received
during the year.

The Holding Company and FSM have not accrued profit on these deposits during the
current and preceding financial years.

The Holding Company had deposited Rs.5 million in Term Deposit with Mehran Bank
Limited at Peshawar for a period of six months @ 12.5% per annum on September 25,
1993 vide TDR No.007902, which was to mature on March 25, 1994. The aforesaid TDR
could not be encashed because of the crisis of Mehran Bank's affairs which were being
administered by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). Mehran Bank Limited was eventually
merged into National Bank of Pakistan (NBP).

The Holding Company, through its lawyers, had issued legal notices to SBP, NBP
and the defunct Mehran Bank Limited. In response, the Holding Company had
received a letter from NBP dated November 05, 1995 stating that the investment by
the Holding Company was shown in Fund Management Scheme, which was an
unrecorded liability of Mehran Bank Limited. The Holding Company had filed a suit with
the Civil Court for recovery of the said amount along with profit @ 12.5% per annum with
effect from September 25, 1993 till the date of payment. The Civil Judge, Peshawar, vide
his judgment dated May 13, 2004, had decreed against SBP. SBP, against the said
judgment, filed an appeal before the Peshawar High Court. The said appeal was
remanded-back to Additional District Judge, Peshawar. The appeal has been disposed-
off vide judgment dated November 29, 2019. The judgment states that the Holding
Company is entitled to recover Rs.5 million with profit at the rate of 12.5% per annum
from NBP from the year 1999.The said execution petition is pending adjudication. Full

provision for the said amount exists in the financial statements of the Holding Company.
In case of CSM, lien is marked on bank balances for an amount of Rs.454 000 thousand

(2023: Rs.454,000 thousand) in respect of the various guarantees extended by the
banks.
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2024 2023 2024 2023
(No. of shares) Rupees in thousand

1,476,340 1,476,340 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
fully paid in cash 14,763 14,763

2,273,660 2,273,660 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares 22,737 22,737

3,750,000 3,750,000 37,500 37,500

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Holding Company.
All the shares rank equally with regard to the Holding Company's residual assets.
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18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

19.

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

19.5

The Holding Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carries no right to fixed
income.

The Holding Company has no reserved shares for issuance under options and sale
contracts.

Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to the
shareholding of the shareholders.

Arpak International Investments Ltd. (an Associated Company) held 400,000 ordinary
shares as at September 30, 2024 and September 30, 2023.

REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Net

The Holding Company, during the financial years ended September 30, 2000, September
30, 2009, September 30, 2011, September 30, 2014, September 30, 2017 and
September 30, 2020 had revalued its buildings on freehold & leasehold land and plant &
machinery, which resulted in revaluation surplus aggregating Rs.229.409 million,
Rs.544.516 million, Rs.110.992 million, Rs.438.066 million, Rs.166.651 million and
Rs.534.211 million respectively. These fixed assets were revalued by independent
Valuers on the basis of depreciated market values.

The Holding Company, as at September 30, 2023, had again revalued its buildings, plant,
machinery and equipment installed at Premier Sugar Mills, Nowshera Mardan Road,
Mardan and Chashma Sugar Mills Unit-ll at Ramak, Dera Ismail Khan. The latest
revaluation exercise has been carried-out by independent Valuers [K.G. Traders (Pvt.)
Ltd. Suit No. 5, 3rd Floor, Galaxy Arcade, G-11 Markaz, Islamabad] to replace the
carrying amounts of these assets with the assessed present market value of buildings
and civil works and assessed depreciated market value of plant, machinery and
equipment. The appraisal surplus arisen on latest revaluation aggregating Rs.1,345.854
million has been credited to statement of other comprehensive income to comply with the
requirements of Law.

FSM, during the financial year ended September 30, 2000, had revalued buildings on
freehold land and plant & machinery. The revaluation exercise was carried-out on the
basis of depreciated market values and it produced appraisal surplus aggregating
Rs.55.414 million, which was credited to this account.

FSM, during the financial year ended September 30, 2009, had revalued its
aforementioned fixed assets and freehold land. This revaluation exercise was carried-out
by independent Valuers [Hamid Mukhtar & Co. (Pvt.) Lid.], to replace the carrying
amounts of these assets with their fair present market values. The appraisal surplus
arisen on this revaluation aggregating Rs.87.718 million was credited to this account to
comply with the requirements of law.

FSM, as at September 30, 2021, has again revalued its freehold land, buildings on
freehold land and plant & machinery to replace the carrying amounts of these assets with
their present market values. The revaluation exercise has been carried-out by
independent Valuers [ K.G. Traders (Pvt.) Ltd.]. Freehold land has been valued on the
basis of present market value, buildings on freehold land have been valued on lump sum
basis whereas plant & machinery has been valued on depreciated replacement value.
The appraisal surplus arisen on latest revaluation aggregating Rs.1,066.079 million has
been credited to this account.
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19.6

19.7

19.8

CSM and its subsidiaries follows revaluation model for freehold land, leasehold land,
buildings & roads, plant & machinery and electric installations. The fair value of the
Group's free hold land, leasehold land, buildings & roads, plant & machinery and electric
installations were assessed by management based on independent valuation performed
by an external property valuation expert for CSML as at September 30, 2024 and for
WFPL and UWFPL as at June 30, 2024. For valuation of freehold land, leasehold land,
buildings & roads, plant & machinery and electric installations, the current market price or
depreciated replacement cost method is used, whereby, current cost of
construction/purchase cost of similar freehold land, leasehold land, buildings & roads,
plant & machinery and electric installations in similar locations has been adjusted using
suitable depreciation rates to arrive at present market value. This technique requires
significant judgment as to estimating the revalued amount in terms of their quality,
structure, layout and locations.

2024 2023
The year-end balance has been arrived at as follows: Rupees in thousand
Opening balance 15,076,996 11,921,909
Add: surplus arisen on revaluations
carried-out during the year 3,161,518 4,039,317
Less: transferred to unappropriated profit on account of
incremental depreciation for the year (1,152,616) (884,230)

17,085,898 15,076,996
Less: deferred tax on:

- opening balance of surplus 3,914,865 2,946,114
- surplus arisen on revaluations carried-out during the year 1,304,150 1,267,515
- incremental depreciation for the year (418,619) (298,764)

4,800,396 3,914,865

Closing balance 12,285,502 11,162,131

The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is not available for
distribution to the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act,
2017,
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20.

LONG TERM FINANCES - Secured
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21.

21.1

21.11

21.2

21.3

LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES - Secured 2024 2023

Note Rupees in thousand
Associated Companies:
Premier Board Mills Limited 21.1 67,922 71,840
Arpak International Investments Limited 21.2 25,000 31,250
Azlak Enterprises (Private) Limited 21.3 85,000 85,000

177,922 188,090
Less: amount payable within next twelve months 24,375 31,236

153,547 156,854

These include long term finance facilities obtained by CSM and its Subsidiary.

The long term finance facility had been renewed on August 2, 2024. The principal is
repayable in 8 semi annual installments commencing from November 2028. The rate of
mark-up is one month KIBOR + 1.25%, provided the mark up charged by the associated
company is not less than the borrowing cost of the associated company. These loans are
secured against promissory note from the Company.

WFPL obtained long term finance facility amounting to Rs 25 million. The principal is
repayable in 8 semi annual instalments commenced from December, 2022. The rate of
mark-up is one month KIBOR + 1.25%, provided the mark-up charged by the associated
company is not less than the borrowing cost of the associated company. These loans are
secured against promissory note from WFPL.

FSM, during the year, entered into a loan agreement to obtain a loan upto and amount of
Rs.25 million from Premier Board Mills Limited (a related party). Premier Board Mills
Limited, during the year, has disbursed Rs.5.450 million to the FSM till the reporting date.
This loan carries markup at the rate of one month KIBOR + 1.25% per annum and is
repayable with in five years after a grace period of two year.

The long term finance facility had been renewed on August 2, 2024. The principal is
repayable in 8 semi annual installments commencing from November 2028. The rate of
mark-up is one month KIBOR + 1.25%, provided the mark up charged by the associated
company is not less than the borrowing cost of the associated company. These loans are
secured against promissory note from the Group.

The long term finance facility has been renewed on January 3, 2022. The principal is
repayable in 8 semi annual installments commencing from December 2024. The rate of
mark-up is one month KIBOR + 1.25%, provided the mark up charged by the associated
company is not less than the borrowing cost of the associated company. These loans are
secured against promissory note from the Group.
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22,

22.1

22.2

23.

231

LEASE LIABILITIES - Secured 2024 2023
Rupees in thousand
Balance at beginning of the year 253,410 237,007
Additions during the year 116,820 131,968
Unwinding of interest on lease liabilities 54,717 46,928
Payments made during the year (160,999) (153,128)
Remeasurement gain (6,074) (9,365)
Balance at end of the year 257,874 253,410
Less: current portion of long term lease liabilities (92,060) (92,014)

165,814 161,396

The Holding Company has entered into lease agreements with Bank Al-Habib Ltd.
for lease of vehicles. The liabilities under the lease agreements are payable in
monthly instalments by May, 2027. The Holding Company intends to exercise its option
to purchase the leased vehicles upon completion of the respective lease terms. These
facilities are secured against title of the leased vehicles in the name of lessor and during
the year carried finance cost at the rates ranging from 20.72% to 23.35% (2023: 23.92%
to 24.77%) per annum.

CSM and its Subsidiaries have acquired vehicles under finance lease from commercial
banks. The financing is repayable in equal monthly instalments over a period of four to
five years and carries finance charge ranging from 17.36% to 26.19% (2023: 16.83% to
24.72%) per annum.

DEFERED GOVERNMENT GRANT

Opening balance 76,281 418

Grant recognised during the year - 99,809
Amortization during the year (26,585) (23,946)
Closing balance 49,696 76,281

CSML has recognised deferred government grant in respect of term finance facility
obtained under SBP temporary economic refinance facility (TERF). The CSM had entered
into an arrangement with Bank Al Habib Limited for obtaining term finance facility under
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) TERF scheme to facilitate retirement of import/shipping
documents received against LCs (foreign and local/inland), upto a maximum of Rs 505
million. The repayment of loan (principal amount) will be made in 10 egual semi annual
installments commenced from September 30, 2023. Mark up rate is 5% on this facility
and shall also be paid on semi annual basis. The availed facility at September 30, 2024
was Rs 456,000 thousand. The facility will expire on September 30, 2027. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to this grant.
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24,

24.1

24.2

24.3

DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Note
Deferred taxation
- The Holding Company 241
- FSM
- CSM 24.3
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity
- The Holding Company 24.4
- FSM
-CSM 24.5

This is comprised of the following:
Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:

- surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:

- accelerated tax depreciation allowances

- available unused tax losses

- staff retirement benefits - gratuity

- provision for doubtful bank balance

- lease finances

- minimum tax recoverable against

normal tax charge in future years

2024 2023
Rupees in thousand

95,603 378,197

- 4,429

3,144,965 3,620,702

3,240,568 4,003,328

43,345 39,132

66 66

22,132 19,965

65,543 59,163

3,306,111 4,062,491

612,901 667,796
(5,713) (297)
(445,113) (230,815)
(12,570) (11,348)
(1,450) (1,450)
(809) (452)
(51,643) (45,237)
(517,298) (289,599)

95,603 378,197

This represent deferred tax asset booked by UWFL a subsidiary company of CSML.

Deferred tax comprises of the following:
Taxable temporary differences arising
in respect of:
- accelerated tax depreciation allowances
- surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment
- lease finances

Deductible temporary differences arising
in respect of:
- provision for doubtful advances
- provision for obsolete items
- expected credit loss on trade debts

- provision for gratuity

- provision for inventory

- minimum tax recoverable against normal
tax charge in future years

685,223 613,510
4,004,223 3,244,235
26,332 24,468
4,715,778 3,882,213
(11,600) (10,318)
; (18,726)
(797) (1,156)
(8,631) (6,926)
(14,970) -
(1,534,815)|  (224,385)
(1,570,813)  (261,511)
3,144,965 3,620,702
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24.4 In case of the Holding Company, the future contribution rates of the scheme include

allowance for deficit and surplus. Projected unit credit method, based on the following
significant assumptions, is used for valuation:

Significant actuarial assumptions 2024 2023
- discount rate - per annum 12.00% 16.75%
- expected rate of growth per annum in future salaries 11.00% 15.75%
- mortality rates SLIC SLIC

2001-2005  2001-2005
Setback 1 year
- withdrawal rates Age-based  Age-based
- retirement assumption Years 60 Years 60

- average expected remaining working life time
of employees 07 years 06 years

Amount recognised in the statement of financial position of the Holding Company is the
present value of defined benefit obligation at the reporting date:

The movement in the present value of defined 2024 2023
benefit obligation is as follows: Rupees in thousand
Opening balance 39,132 28,697
Current service cost 2.808 2,063
Past service cost 728 1,413
Interest cost 6,245 3,449

Benefits payable to outgoing Members -
grouped under current liabilities (1,929) -

Benefits paid (1,776) (5,334)
Remeasurements:

- experience adjustments (706) 8,037

- changes in financial assumptions (1,157) 807
Closing balance 43,345 39,132
Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss

of the Holding Company
Current service cost 2,808 2,063
Past service cost 728 1,413
Interest cost 6,245 3,449
Charge for the year 9,781 6,925

Remeasurement recognised in statement of other
comprehensive income of the Holding Company

Experience adjustments (1,863) 8,844

Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation and experience adjustment on
obligation for five years is as follows:
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24.5

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
-en Rupees in thousand
Present value of defined
benefit obligation _ 43,345 39,132 28,697 20,096 18,479
Experience adjustment
on obligation (1,863) 8,844 6,572 2277 (614)

Year-end Sensitivity Analysis:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

; Increase Decrease
Changa'ln Rupees in thousand
assumption
Discount rate 1% 40,584 46,426
Salary growth rate 1% 46,678 40,297

In case of the Holding Company, the expected contribution to defined benefit obligation

for the year ending September 30, 2025 is Rs.8.058million.

In case of CSM, the latest actuarial valuation of the employees’ defined benefit plan was
conducted at September 30, 2024 using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Details of the

defined benefit plan are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

2024
Rupees in thousand

22,132

2023

19,965

Net liability

Movement in net liability recognised

Opening net liability

Expense for the year recognised in statement
of profit or loss

Remeasurement loss recognised in statement
of other comprehensive income (OCI)

Benefits paid

Benefits payable to outgoing employees transferred
to trade and other payables

22,132 19,965

Expense for the year
Current service cost
Net interest expense

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Benefits payable to outgoing employees transferred to
trade and other payables
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligation

Closing defined benefit obligation

19,965 14,843
8,935 5,639
(2,245) 2,656
(5,360) (1,180)
837 (1,993)
22,132 19,965
6,040 3,882
2,895 1,757
8,935 5,639
19,965 14,843
6,040 3,882
2,895 1,757
(5,360) (1,180)
837 (1,993)
(2,245) 2,656
22,132 19,965
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Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation

The Projected Unit Credit Method using the following significant assumptions was used
for the valuation of the scheme:

2024 2023
Discount rate used for interest cost 16.75% 13.25%
Discount rate used for year end obligation 11.75% 16.75%
Salary increase rate - long term 11.75% 16.75%
Salary increase rate - short term 11.75% 16.75%
Demographic assumptions

SLIC SLIC
Mortality rates 2001-05 2001-05

During the year 2025, CSM expects to contribute Rs.8,585 thousand (2024: Rs.8,278
thousand) to its gratuity scheme.

2024 2023
Remeasurement recognised in OCI during the year: Rupees in thousand
Actuarial loss / (gain) from (170) 1,540

in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments (2,075) 1,116
(2,245) 2,656

The weighted average number of years of defined benefit obligation is given below:
Plan duration Years
September 30, 2024 10
September 30, 2023 9

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumptions set out above.
The following table summarizes how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period would have increased/ (decreased) as a result of a change in
respective assumptions by one percent.

Effect of 1% Effect of 1%

Increase Decrease
2024 Rupees in thousand
Discount rate (20,029) 24,615
Future salary growth 24,627 (19,979)
2023
Discount rate (18,387) 21,797
Future salary growth 21,756 (18,396)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on the changes in assumptions while holding
all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some
of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of defined benefit
obligation to significant assumptions the same method (present value of the defined
benefit obligation calculated with the projected credit unit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied when calculating the liability recognized within the
statement of financial position.

The defined benefit obligation exposes CSM and its Subsidiaries to the following risks:
Final salary risks:

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what was
assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would
also increase proportionately.
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29;

25.1

Withdrawal risks:

The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect could go
either way depending on the beneficiaries’ service / age distribution and the benefit.

Mortality risks:

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. Similar to the withdrawal risk, the
effect depends on the beneficiaries' service / age distribution and the benefit.

Discount rate fluctuation

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate
bond yields. A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although

this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the current plan’s bond holdings.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2024 2023
Note Rupees in thousand

Creditors 765,631 559,732
Due to Associated Companies 25.1 186,760 166,809
Accrued expenses 206,716 200,778
Retention money 30,565 39,839
Security deposits - interest free

repayable on demand 2,351 2,278
Income tax deducted at source 238,454 105,758
Sales tax payable 373,564 292,392
Gratuity payable to ex-employees 7,619 5,919
Advance received against sale of scrap . 2,024
Payable for WPPF & WWF obligation 25.3(a) &(b) 30,258 113,424
Workers' (profit) participation fund - allocation
for the year (Holding Company) \ - 792
Payable to provident fund 17,365 12,687
Payable to employees 93,677 63,382
Others 235,775 29,690

2,188,735 | 1,595,504
This represents due to the following related parties and are interest free and payable on
demand.
- Azlak Enterprises (Pvt.) Ltd. 59,683 46,672
- Syntronics Ltd. 12,150 197
- Syntron Ltd. 14,927 -
- Phipson & Company Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd. - 55
- Directors 100,000 119,925
186,760

166,809
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25.2 Payable for Workers' Profit Participation &
workers' welfare obligation
(a) Payable for Workers' Profit Participation fund

2024 2023

(CSM and its Subsidiaries) Note Rupees in thousand
Balance at the beginning of the year 83,166 24,008
Charge for the year - 83,166
Prior year adjustment (4,202) 1,264
78,964 108,438
Interest on funds utilized in the business 7,418 1,438
Payments made during the year (86,382) (26,710)
Balance at the end of the year - 83,166
(b) Payable for workers' welfare fund
(CSM and its Subsidiaries)
Balance at the beginning of the year 30,258 29,957
Charge for the year - 28,097
Prior year adjustment - (5,209)
30,258 52,845
Payments made during the year - (22,587)
Balance at the end of the year 30,258 30,258
26. ACCRUED MARK-UP
Mark-up accrued on:
- long term finances 93,881 302,368
- loans from related parties 100 52,446
- short term borrowings 367,462 391,940
461,443 746,754
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27.

L1

27.2

27.3

28.

29.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 2024 2023
Note Rupees in thousand

The Holding Company
Secured 271 497,000 -
Temporary bank overdraft - unsecured 27,323 35
CSM
Cash / running finances and

export re-finances - secured 213 9,147,488 4 615,585

9,671,811

4,615,620

Short term finance facilities available from various commercial banks under mark-up
arrangements aggregate Rs.1,900 million (2023: Rs.1,300 million). These facilities are
secured against charge over fixed assets, charge over present and future current assets
of the Holding Company, registered first exclusive charge over the Holding Company's
head office second and third floors (without land), pledge of sugar stocks, cross corporate
guarantee of Chashma Sugar Mills Ltd. (a Subsidiary Company) amounting Rs.800
million and lien over export documents. These facilities, during the year, carried mark-up
at the rates ranging from 19.43% to 24.87% (2023: 16.71% to 24.41%) per annum and
are expiring on various dates by March 31, 2024.

In case of the Holding Company, facilities available for opening letters of guarantee and
credit from commercial banks aggregate Rs.700 million (2023: Rs.680 million). Out of the
available facilities, facilities aggregating Rs.536.18 million (2023: Rs.481.296 million)
remained un-utilised at the year-end. These facilities are secured against lien over import
and shipping documents and the securities detailed in the preceding paragraph.

Finance facilities available to CSM from various commercial banks under mark-up
arrangements aggregate Rs.25.750 billion (2023: Rs.15.275 billion) and are secured
against pledge of sugar stocks and charge on present and future current assets of CSM.

CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finances 20 1,357,929 1,305,829
Loans from related parties 21 106,440 31,236
Lease liabilities 22 92,060 92,014
1,556,429 1,429,079

LEVIES AND INCOME TAXATION - Net -
Opening balance 129,134 18,242

Add: provision made during the year

- current 418,379 344 883
- prior year (3,074) 41,974
415,305 386,857
544,439 405,099
Less: adjustments made against completed assessments 125,895 275,965
418,544 129,134

Closing balance
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29.1

29.2

29.3

29.4

29.5

29.6

29.7

30.

30.1

The Holding Company

The returns for the Tax Years 2010 to 2024 have been filed after complying with all the
provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance). Accordingly, the declared
returns are deemed to be assessment orders under the law subject to selection of audit
or pointing of deficiency by the Commissioner.

No numeric tax rate reconciliation is presented in these consolidated financial statements
as the Group during the current and preceding years is mainly liable to pay tax due under
sections 5 (Tax on dividends) , 113 (Minimum tax on the income of certain persons) and
154 (Tax on exports) of the Ordinance.

The Holding Company has filed a civil petition for leave to appeal (CPLA) before the
Supreme Court of Pakistan against judgment dated November 10, 2021 passed by the
Peshawar High Court. The said writ petition was filed by the Company challenging the
impugned notices of income tax audit under section 177 of the Ordinance for tax years
2015, 2016, 2018 and 2019. The said CPLA is pending.

FSM

The Company falls under the ambit of final taxation under the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 (the Ordinance) and current year's provision is made accordingly. As explained in
note 4.3 the liability shall be the final tax fall under levy within the scope of IFRIC 21 / IAS
37.

No numeric tax rate reconciliation is presented in these financial statements as the
Company during the current and preceding years is mainly liable to pay tax due under
sections 5 (Tax on dividends) , 113 (Minimum tax on the income of certain persons) and
154 (Tax on exports) of the Ordinance.

The Subsidiary Company has filed a civil petition for leave to appeal (CPLA) before the
Supreme Court of Pakistan against judgment dated November 10, 2021 passed by the
Peshawar High Court. The said writ petition was filed by the Company challenging the
impugned notices of income tax audit under section 177 of the Ordinance for tax years
2015, 2016, 2018 and 2019. The said CPLA is pending.

Reconciliation of current tax charge charged as per tax laws for the year, with
current tax recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account, is as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees in thousand
Current tax liability for the year
as per applicable tax laws 418,379 344,883

Portion of current tax liability as per tax laws,
representing income tax under IAS 12 3,811 30,771

Portion of current tax computed as per tax laws,
representing levy in terms of
requirements of IFRIC 21/ IAS 37 422,190 314,112

Difference . -

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
The Holding Company

Commitments against irrevocable letters of credit outstanding as at September 30, 2024
amounted Rs.96.963 million (2023: Rs.198.704 million).
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30.2

30.3

30.4

30.5

The Holding Company's appeal filed before the Peshawar High Court (PHC) against
order of the Customs, Sales Tax & Central Excise Appellate Tribunal is still pending
adjudication. The Department, during the financial year ended September 30, 2001, had
raised sales tax demand aggregating Rs.4.336 million along with additional tax. The
Holding Company, however, during the financial year ended September 30, 2005, had
paid sales tax amounting Rs.2.123 million along with additional tax amounting Rs.0.658
million as per the requirements of S.R.0. 247(l) / 2004 dated May 05, 2004,

Petitions filed before the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) against imposition of Gas
Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) have been dismissed vide judgment
dated August 13, 2020 in 2-1 ratio. The SCP's judgment states that the cess under GIDC
Act, 2015 was levied on those consumers of natural gas which on account of their
industrial or commercial dealings had passed on GIDC burden to their customers. The
SCP's judgment states that no late payment surcharge shall be collected while the GIDC
amount that have become due upto July 31, 2020 will be recovered in 24 equal monthly
instalments. Based on this judgment, the Holding Company has filed a writ petition before
the PHC challenging the demand of GIDC arrears on the ground that the Holding
Company has not passed on GIDC burden to its customers. The PHC, vide its order
dated September 19, 2021, has granted interim relief.

PHC, vide its judgment dated June 15, 2022, has dismissed the petition filed by the
Petitioners, observing that while exercising jurisdiction vested under article 199 of the
Constitution, the Court can neither enter into factual controversies nor decide disputed
questions of facts. The PHC, however, has allowed the Petitioners to approach a
competent Court of law / forum having jurisdiction in the matter, if they so advised.

The Holding Company, during the preceding years, has filed a civil suit before the Civil
Judge, Peshawar challenging the demand of GIDC arrears through the impugned
additional bills without determination of alleged passing on the burden to the end
consumers. The said civil suit is pending adjudication.

The Holding Company's petition filed before the PHC, against the Government of Khyber
Pakhtunkhwa's notification dated August 12, 2015 in which minimum wages for unskilled
workers has been fixed at Rs.12,000 per month with effect from July 01, 2014 has been
dismissed by the PHC vide its judgment dated April 02, 2019.The Holding Company has
filed a review petition before the PHC against the said judgment, which was also
dismissed. The additional wage liabilities aggregate Rs.2.359 million approximately. The
Holding Company has filed a civil petition for leave to appeal before the Supreme Court
of Pakistan, which is pending adjudication.

The sales tax appeal filed before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR),
Peshawar against ex-parte order passed by the Commissioner Inland Revenue
(Appeals) [CIR(A)] has been succeeded vide order dated March 29, 2018. The
assessment order dated June 23, 2016 was passed by the Deputy Commissioner Inland
Revenue (DCIR), Peshawar in violation of SRO 488(1)/2004 dated June 12, 2014; the
Holding Company claimed input tax to the tune of Rs.41.672 million against the supplies
to unregistered persons. A withdrawal application has been filed before the ATIR,
Peshawar in pursuance of the aforesaid rectification order.
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The DCIR for the tax year 2013 initially has held the Holding Company as taxpayer-in-
default for non-deduction of tax on certain supplies / services and tax demand was raised
at Rs.77.750 million under section 161 (Failure to pay tax collected or deducted) along
with default surcharge of Rs.4.730 million under section 205 (Default surcharge) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance). The Holding Company filed rectification
application under section 221 of the Ordinance and the demand was reduced to
Rs.237,360. Against the said demand, the Holding Company has filed an appeal before
the CIR(A), who dismissed the Holding Company's appeal. Presently, the Holding
Company's appeal against the CIR(A)'s order is pending before the ATIR, Peshawar.

The Holding Company has filed a writ petition before the PHC challenging Federal
Government Order No.1(1) 2020 ROP dated July 16, 2021 and Provincial Government
Order No.13/12-Sugar /IND / Vol-V |/ 7862 dated July 16, 2021 issued under section 6 of
the Price Control and Prevention of Profiteering and Hoarding Act, 1977 whereby the
retail price of sugar at the rate of Rs.88.24 per kilo gram was fixed. The PHC, vide its
order dated July 30, 2021, has allowed interim relief and ordered that in the meanwhile
status que be maintained.

The Holding Company has filed a writ petition before the PHC challenging Federal
Government Order F.No.2-8 |/ 2022 / SAB / A - |V dated April 20, 2023 issued under
section 6 of the Price Control and Prevention of Profiteering and Hoarding Act, 1977 read
with Price Control and Prevention of Profiteering and Hoarding Order, 2021 dated August
24, 2021 whereby the retail price of sugar at the rate of Rs.98.82 per kilo gram and
maximum ex-mill price was fixed at the rate of Rs.95.57 per kilo gram. The PHC, vide its
order dated June 06, 2023, has granted interim relief while the main writ petition is
pending.

Various cases have been filed against the Holding Company by some former employees.
Based on the legal advice, no provision has been made in the books of account.

Guarantees given to Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Ltd. by commercial banks on behalf of
the Holding Company outstanding as at September 30, 2024 were for Rs.37.340 million
(2023: Rs.37.340 million).These guarantees are valid upto June 19, 2024.

FSM

The Additional Collector of Sales Tax, Peshawar, had served a show cause notice raising
sales tax demands aggregating Rs.1.528 million along with additional tax on the grounds
that the Subsidiary Company under-valued the price of spirit during the financial years
1994-95 & 1995-96 and paid lesser sales tax. The Subsidiary Company paid Rs.0.248
million against the said demands and filed an appeal before the Customs, Central Excise
and Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal, Peshawar Bench, which is pending adjudication.

The Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Peshawar, vide its order dated October 09,
2012, had allowed the Subsidiary Company's appeal; the Company prayed that the order
passed by the Department during July, 2007 be set-aside and refund claims pertaining to
the period April to December, 2006 aggregating Rs. 421 thousand be sanctioned.

No commitments were outstanding as at September 30, 2024 and September 30, 2023.
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CSM and its Subsidiaries

The Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR), Peshawar vide order dated May 26, 2015
alleged that the CSM and its subsidiaries has not undertaken appropriate stock taking
and raised a demand of Rs 10 million in respect of FED on the alleged differential stock.
the CSML and its subsidiaries accepted vide order dated January 25, 2016. In this
respect, the tax department filed reference before the Honorable Peshawar High Court
which is yet to be decided.

In respect of super tax demand under section 4C of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the
tax year 2021 @ 10% of taxable income, the CSM and its subsidiaries had filed writ
petition before Peshawar High Court, and an interim relief was granted, directing the CSM
and its subsidiaries to 50% of the tax demanded. However, during the year, The Federal
Board of Revenue (FBR) sent a notice to the CSM and its subsidiaries directing it to pay
super tax @ 4%, based on Supreme Court's order in respect of other companies wherein
the Supreme Court of Pakistan granted an interim relief against demand of super tax at
the rate of 10% and directed FBR to recover the tax @ 4%. Management has recorded a
current tax charge of Rs 41.9 million during the year in respect of super tax @ 4% out of
which Rs. 24.9 million is paid during the prior year. The CSM and its subsidiaries and its
legal counsel are confident that based on Supreme Court's order maximum exposure of
the CSM and its subsidiaries in respect of super tax for tax year 2021 is 4% and no
further provision needs to be recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

The Federal government through SRO No. 1062(1)/2021 dated April 28, 2021 fixed the Ex-
Mill and Retail prices of Sugar u/s 6 of the Price Control and Prevention of Profiteering

and Hoarding Act, 1997 at Rs.95.57/kg and Rs.98.82/kg. The CSM and its subsidiaries

filed a writ petition in Peshawar High court against a decision of Federal Government on

April 20, 2023. Peshawar High Court granted stay on the case vide order dated June 086,

2023 and the case is currently pending adjudication as at year end.

The Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) issued a show cause notice dated
November 04, 2020 to sugar mills with respect to artificial price hike and alleged
cartelization. The CSM and its subsidiaries submitted its reply dated December 25, 2020.
However CCP passed an order dated August 13, 2021 and on the basis of revenues of
financial year 2019 imposed a penalty of Rs.650,000 thousand on the CSM and its
subsidiaries. Against the said order of CCP, the CSM and its subsidiaries has filed an
appeal before the CCP Appellate tribunal. The CCP Appellate tribunal has granted stay
order against the CCP's order dated August 13, 2021. The case is pending adjudication.

The CSM and its subsidiaries has letter of guarantee facilities aggregating Rs 50 million
(2023: Rs 50 million) available from Bank Al Habib. The amount availed on these facilities
as at September 30, 2024 is Rs 4 million (2023: Rs 4 million). These facilities are secured
by master counter guarantee and 100% cash margin.

The CSM and its subsidiaries has obtained letter of credit facilities aggregating Rs 415
million (2023: Rs 365 million) from Bank Al Habib. The amount availed on these facilities
as at September 30, 2024 is Rs 249 million (2023: Rs 221 million). These facilities are
secured by lien on shipping documents.

The CSM and its subsidiaries has cash finance facility available from various banks
aggregating to Rs 19,850 million (2023: Rs 10,825 million), out of which Rs 2,573 million
(2023: Rs 2,968 million) has been availed by the CSM and its subsidiaries as at
September 30, 2024. These facilities are secured against pledge charge over crystalline
sugar inclusive of margin of 10 - 15%.
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The CSM and its subsidiaries has Export Re Finance/Finance Against Packing Credit
(ERF / FAPC) facility from various commercial banks for Rs 5,900 million (2023: Rs 3,950
million), out of which Rs 5,449 million (2023: Rs 1,524 million) has been availed by the
CSM and its subsidiaries as at September 30, 2024. These facilities are secured by the
joint parri passu hypothecation charge over current assets of the CSM and its
subsidiaries and lien over export documents.

The CSM and its subsidiaries is defending its stance before the courts of law against
various parties including individuals, corporate entities, federal and provincial revenue /
regulatory authorities efc. The management of the CSM and its subsidiaries is of the view
that the ultimate outcome of these cases are expected to be favorable and a liability, if
any, arising on the settlement of these cases is not likely to be material. Accordingly, no

provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements in this regard.

During the period, the CSM and its subsidiaries has issued further corporate guarantee
amounting to Rs. 667 million in favour of UWFL in connection with financing
arrangements with a financial institution. The financing facility is expected to be settied by
December 31, 2027 and accordingly, the guarantee issued by the CSM and its
subsidiaries will be released by December 31, 2027.

2024 2023

Note Rupees in thousand
In case of CSM and its Subsidiaries, commitments in
respect of :
- foreign letters of credit for purchase of plant & machinery 285.663 -
- local letters of credit for purchase of plant & machinery - 143,681
- capital expenditure other than for letters of credit 25.515 14.386
GROSS SALES
- local 37,382,670 22,044,291
- export 31.1 6,847,464 9,777,952

44,230,134 31,822,243

Export sales of the Group comprise of the sugar and ethanol sales made in the following

regions:

Spain 2,427,827 5,262,047
Indonesia 396,691 .
Singapore 561,377 555,291
Hong Kong 373,715 97,765
Switzerland 2,675,212 3,269,109
China - 540,773
Afghanistan - 52,967
United Arab Emirates 412,642 -
6,847,464 9,777,952
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32.

33.

33.1

34.

SALES TAX, OTHER GOVERNMENT LEVIES AND DISCOUNTS

Indirect taxes
Discounts

COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed
Chemicals and stores consumed
Salaries, wages and benefits
Power and fuel

Insurance

Repair and maintenance
Provision for obsolete items
Depreciation

- property, plant and equipment
- right of use assets

Adjustment of work-in-process:
Opening
Closing

Cost of goods manufactured
Adjustment of finished goods:
Opening stock

Closing stock

Note

331

6.10

1

11

2024 2023
Rupees in thousand
4,810,170 3,162,895

24,814 11,558
4,834,984 3,174,453
32,545,217 19,244,388
631,677 578,118
1,215,048 1,077,285
293,066 246,774
61,916 38,118
579,927 664,775
750 -
1,870,794 1,406,281
4,159 4,621
37,202,554 23,260,360
26,837 22,628
(52,248) (26,837)
(25,411) (4,209)
37,177,143 23,256,151
5,285,461 4.117,744
(4,209,070)(| (5,285,461)
1,076,391 (1,167,717)
38,253,534 22,088,434

Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs.26.89 million (2023:Rs.27.274million) in respect

of retirement benefits.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits
Loading and stacking
Export development surcharge

341

Freight, commission and other expenses on exports

Depreciation - right of use assets
Commission - local
Others

34,228 21,035
43,366 33,691
19,106 18,466
496,288 840,542
17,453 19,446
332,047 623
478 39
942,966 933,842
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34.1 Salaries and benefits include Rs.658 thousand (2023: Rs.532 thousand) in respect of

retirement benefits.

35. ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES 2024 2023
Note Rupees in thousand
Salaries and benefits 35.1 789,091 680,211
Travelling 97,080 81,434
Utilities 12,324 5,135
Vehicles' running and maintenance 59,660 48,885
Rent, rates and taxes 21,542 26,756
Insurance 14,785 11,039
Repair and maintenance 140,902 66,898
Printing and stationery 20,965 17,784
Communication 31,818 18,559
Fees and subscription 19,236 5,381
Auditors' remuneration 35.2 12,131 8,790
Legal and professional charges (other than Auditors) 25,339 22,572
Depreciation on:
- operating fixed assets 6.10 208,713 93,569
- right of use assets 7 60,357 52,858
- investment property 8 4,910 282
Expected credit loss for doubtful debts 17,679 1,551
Impairment loss for export subsidy 149,737 65,413
Loss allowance on doubtful advances 12,412 -
General 130,472 -
Entertainment 2,867 110,090

1,832,020 1,317,207

35.1 Salaries and benefits include Rs.21.951 million (2023: Rs.19.157 million) in respect of
retirement benefits.
35.2 Auditors' remuneration

Sinewing Hameed Chaudhri & Co.

- statutory audits 1,626 1,297
- half-yearly reviews 419 195
- consultancy and certification charges 708 960
- short provision for the preceding year 27 172
- out-of-pocket expenses 76 73
2,856 2,697
A.F.Ferguson & Co.
(statutory auditors of CSM and its Subsidiaries)
- statutory audits 6,130 4,224
- half year review 691 693
- consolidation 338 308
- certifications and group reporting 1,361 668
- out-of-pocket expenses 755 200
9,275 6,093

12,131 8,790
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36.

37.

371
38.

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets: Note
Return on bank deposits

Mark-up earned on term depository receipts

Gain on redemption of short term investments

Fair value gain on re-measurement of short term investments
Dividend

Income from other than financial assets:

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets

Rent

Sale of scrap - net of expenses

Sale of press mud - net of sales tax

Unclaimed payable balances written-back

Sale of agricultural produce - net of costs and expenses

Sale of fusel oil - net of sales tax

Sale of chemicals - net of costs

Income against insurance claim

Others

OTHER EXPENSES
Donations (without directors’ interest) 371
Uncollectible receivable balances written-off

Workers' profit participation fund and

workers' welfare obligations 25.2
Prior year's sales tax on account of

inadmissible input tax adjustment claimed

Others

Expense for the year represents donation paid to Al - Siraj Welfare Foundation.

FINANCE COST
Mark-up on:

- long term finances
- loans from Associated Companies
- short term borrowings
Interest on workers' (profit) participation fund 25.2

Unwinding of interest on lease liabilities
Bank charges
Amortisation of deferred Government grant

Exchange fluctuation loss - net

2024 2023
Rupees in thousand
14,635 12,780
88,758 31,313
- 3,223
3 73
696 :
15,729 8,592
13 12
54,963 51,995
7,218 7,654
7,279 160
19,197 3,896
3,101 3,378
. 405
- 119,462
17,413 -
229,005 242,943
1,039 2,042
- 639
- 108,110
- 1,096
15,327 :
16,366 111,887
1,223,112 922,799
40,295 41,598
3,464,612 1,793,977
7,418 1,438
56,603 47,731
28,782 12,333
(26,585) (23,946)
37,184 185,347

4,831,421

2,981,277
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39.

40.1
41.

LEVIES AND INCOME TAXATION

Final tax levy
- for the year

Current
- for the year
- prior year

Deferred:
- on account of temporary differences

COMBINED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

There is no dilutive effect on earnings per share
of the Holding Company, which is based on:

(Loss) / earnings attributable to equity holders
of the Holding Company

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year

Combined (loss) / earnings per share

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Financial instruments by category

Financial assets
At fair value through profit or loss
Short term investments
At amortised cost
Maturity upto one year
Trade debts
Trade deposits and other receivables
Bank balances
Maturity after one year
Long term security deposits

Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Maturity upto one year
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividends
Accrued mark-up
Short term borrowings
Current maturity of non-current liabilities
Maturity after one year
Long term finances
Loans from related parties
Lease liabilities

2024

2023

Rupees in thousand

422,190 314,112
5,884 30,771
(3,074) 41,974
2,810 72,745
(2,213,934)  (550,515)
(2,211,124)  (477.770)
(2,482,663) 812433

No. of shares

3,750,000 3,750,000
_______ Rupees ---=-=----
(662.04) 216.65
2024 2023

Rupees in thousand

78 10,305
440,448 1,251,423
108,216 223,571

1,114,598 950,611
17,244 16,985
1,680,506 2,442,590
1,546,459 1,083,139
23,149 7,470
461,443 746,754
9,671,811 4.615,620
1,556,429 1.429 079
6,265,941 4,673,542
153,547 156,854
165,814 161,396
19,844,593 12,873,854
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41.2

(@)

(b)

Financial Risk Factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried-out by the Group's finance departments under policies
approved by the board of directors. The Group's finance departments evaluate financial
risks based on principles for overall risk management as well as policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of
excess liquidity, provided by the boards of directors.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of
risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Currency risk
The Holding Company

Foreign currency risk mainly arises where receivables and payables exist due to
transactions entered into in foreign currencies. The Holding Company is not exposed to
foreign exchange risk as it does not have any foreign currency receivables or payables at
the reporting date.

CsSM

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly
from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to
transactions in foreign currencies. Financial liabilities include Rs. 44,112 thousand (2023:
Financial liabilities included Rs. 972,202 thousand) which were subject to currency risk.

Rupees per U.S.$ 2024 2023
Average rate 283.33 259.03
Reporting date rate 278.05 288.60

Sensitivity analysis

As at September 30, 2024, if the currency had weakened/strengthened by 10% against
US dollar with all other variables held constant, loss after tax for the year of CSM would
have been Rs.4,411 thousand (2023: Rs.97,220 thousand) higher / lower.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. At the reporting date, the
interest rate profile of the Group's interest bearing financial instruments is as follows:
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2024 2023 2024 2023

Effective rate Carrying amount

Variable rate instruments Rupees in thousand
Financial assets
Deposits with a non-banking

finance Company - 12,000
Bank balances 13.50% to 24.87%  13.50% to 24.41% 580,850 512,811
Financial liabilities
Long term finances 3 to 6 month KIBOR + spread rate 7,353,035 5,979,371
Loans from Associated

Companies 1 month KIBOR + 1.25% 177,922 188,090
Lease liabilities 17.36% to 26.19% 23.92% to 24.77% 257,874 253,410
Short term borrowings 19.43% to 24.87% 16.71% to 24.41% 9,644,488 4,615,585

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not
affect profit or loss of the Group.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

At September 30, 2024, if interest rate on variable rate financial instruments had been 1%
higher / lower with all other variables held constant, loss after taxation for the year would
have been higher / lower by Rs.,178.008 milion mainly as a result of higher interest
expense on variable rate financial liabilities (2023: profit before taxation would have been
lower / higher by Rs.110.485 million)

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest
rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market. As at September 30, 2024, price risk arose from the
Group's investments in Units of a Mutual Fund classified as short term investments at fair
value through profit or loss. To manage its price risk, the Group diversifies its portfolio
and continuously monitors developments in the market. In addition, the Group's

As at September 30, 2024, a 10% increase / decrease in redemption value of Units of the
Mutual Fund would have decreased / increased loss after taxation for the current year by
Rs.7.8 thousand (2023: profit before taxation would have been higher / lower by Rs.1,031
thousand).

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on statement
of profit or loss and investments of the Group.

Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Group attempts to control credit
risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and
continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.
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Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in
similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their
abilities to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic,
political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of
the Group's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts, deposits with a non-banking finance
company and balances with banks. To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade
debts, management performs credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial
position, past experience and other relevant factors. Where considered necessary,
advance payments are obtained from certain parties. The management of the Holding
Company has set a maximum credit period of 30 days to reduce the credit risk. Credit risk
on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit
ratings. In respect of other counter parties, due to the Holding Company long standing
business relationship with them, management does not expect non-performance by these
counter parties on their obligations to the Holding Company.

CSM and its Subsidiaries

The management of CSM and its Subsidiaries has set an allowed credit period to reduce
the credit risk.

CSM and its Subsidiaries recognise ECL for trade debts using the simplified approach. As
per the aforementioned approach, the loss allowance was determined as follows:

1-180 181-365 More than

days days 365 days Tota
Rupees in thousand

September 30, 2024

Gross carrying value 448,457 2,481 10,493 461,431
Loss allowance 9,179 1,340 10,493 21,012
September 30, 2023

Gross carrying value 1,215,486 223 1,729 1,217,438
Loss allowance 1,381 223 1,729 3,333

ECL on other receivables is calculated using general approach. At the reporting date,
CSM and its Subsidiaries envisage that default risk on account of non-realisation of other
receivables is minimal and thus based on historical trends adjusted to reflect current and
forward looking information loss allowance has been estimated by CSM and iis
Subsidiaries using a range of probable recovery pattern of related other receivables and

assigning a time value of money to same. As per the aforementioned approach, the loss
2024 2023

(Rupees in thousand)

September 30,
Gross carrying value 130,473 26,163
Loss allowance 905 905

Based on past experience, the management believes that no further impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of trade debts, loans and advances and other financial
assets.
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Exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at September 30, 2024 along with comparative
1s tabulated below:

2024 2023

Rupees in thousand
Security deposits 17,244 16,985
Trade debts 440,448 1,251,423
Short term investments 78 10,305
Trade deposit and other receivables 108,216 2235711
Deposits with a non-banking finance company . 12,000
Bank balances 1,114,598 938,611

1,680,584 2,452,895

The management does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter
parties.

Trade debts at September 30, 2024 represented domestic and foreign parties.

Based on past experience, the Group's management believes that no impairment loss
allowance is necessary in respect of trade debts as material amounts have been realised
subsequent to the year-end.

Credit quality of financial assets of CSM and its Subsidiaries:

The credit quality of CSM and its Subsidiaries financial assets have been assessed below
by reference to external credit ratings of counterparties determined by the Pakistan Credit
Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) and VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (VIS). The
counterparties for which external credit ratings were not available have been assessed by
reference to internal credit ratings determined based on their historical information for any
defaults in meeting obligations.

Counterparties without external credit rating

Trade debts 440,448 1,251,423
Loans and advances 130,473 15,007
Trade deposits and other receivables 98,928 369,248

669,849 1,635,678

Counter-parties with external credit rating

Bank balances Rating
Al+ 942,535 235,287
A1 4,750 20,853
947,285 256,140
Loans and advances A-1+ - 11,156
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41.4 Liquidity risk

42
421

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Group's approach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and ensuring the availability
of adequate credit facilities. The Group's treasury departments aim at maintaining
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below:

Carrying | Contractual | Less than 1 Eﬁt;E:"
amount cash flows year years
2024  ee——— Rupees in thousand
Long term finances 7,353,035 7,353,035 1,087,094 6,265,941
Loans from related
parties 177,922 177,922 24,375 153,547
Lease liabilities 257,874 257.874 92,060 165,814
Trade and other payables 1,546,459 1,546,459 1,546,459 -
Unclaimed dividends 23,149 23,149 23,149 -
Accrued mark-up 461,443 461,443 461.443 -
Short term borrowings 9,671,811 9,671,811 9,671,811 -
19,491,693 19,491,693 12,906,391 6,585,302

2023

Long term finances
Losns from relsated

2,979 370

D.O9FO. 370

1.305.829

4.673.541

parties 188,090 188,090 31.236 156.8549
Laase liabilities 253,410 253, 410 92,014 161 . 396
Trade and other payables 1.083,139 1.083.139 1.083.139 -
Unclaimeaed dividends F.4a47F70 7. a470 F.a470 -
Accrued mark-up 746,754 TA46, 754 Ta6, 754 -
Short term borrowings £4.615,620 4. 615,620 4 615,620 -

12.873.853 12.873,853 £.882.062 4,991,791

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined
on the basis of interest / mark-up rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of
interest / mark-up have been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial
statements.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HIERARCHY

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled,
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’'s length transaction. Consequently,
differences may arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.

At September 30, 2024, the carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected
in the consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values.

The following table shows the fair value measurements of the financial instruments
carried at fair value by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

As at September 30, 2024, the Group's investments in a Mutual Fund were measured at
fair value using year-end Net Assets Value as computed by the Assets Management
Company. Fair value of these investments fell within level 2 of fair value hierarchy as
mentioned above.
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42.2 Fair value hierarchy (CSM and its Subsidiaries)

43.

Certain property, plant and equipment of CSM and its Subsidiaries were valued by
independent valuer to determine the fair value of property, plant and equipment as at
September 30, 2024. The revaluation surplus was credited to other comprehensive
income and is shown as 'surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment’. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets/ liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Boards
monitor the return on capital and the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid
to shareholders and / or issue new shares. There was no change to the Group's approach
to the capital management during the year.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements except for the
maintenance of debt to equity and current ratios under the financing agreements,
Accordingly, the liabilities under these financing agreements have been classified as per
the repayment schedules applicable in respect of the aforesaid financing agreements.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as net debt divided
by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as amounts payable by the Group
less bank balances. Capital signifies equity as shown in the statement of financial
position plus net debt. The Group's gearing ratio is as follows:

2024 2023

Rupees in thousand
Long term finances 7,353,035 5,979,371
Loans from related parties 177,922 188,090
Lease liabilities 257,874 253,410
Short term borrowings 9,671,811 4,615,620
Total debt 17,460,642 11,036,491
Less: bank balances (1,114,598) (950,611)
Net debt 16,346,044 10,085,880
Share capital 37,500 37,500
Share redemption reserve 1 1
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 5,929,257 5,805,000
General revenue reserve 1,010,537 1,010,537
Unappropriated profit 285,358 2,342 927
Equity 7,262,653 9,195,965
Capital 23,608,697 19,281,845
Gearing ratio (Net debt / (Net debt + Equity)) 69.24% 52.31%
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44.3

44 .4

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Holding Company has related party relationship with its Associated Companies,
employee benefit plans, its directors and key management personnel. Transactions with
related parties are carried-out on arm's length basis. There were no transactions with key
management personnel other than under the terms of employment. Aggregate
transactions with related parties during the year were as follows:

2024 2023
The Holding Company Rupees in thousand
Associated Companies
- purchase of store items 14,927 13,157
- expenses paid on account of storage service - 12,484
Key management personnel
- salaries and other benefits 43,036 7,989

The Holding Company's shareholdings in Associated Companies have been detailed in
note 9. In addition to the names of the Associated Companies detailed in note 9, the
following are other Associated Companies:

- Syntron Ltd. - Premier Construction &
- Syntronics Ltd. Housing Ltd.
- Premier Ceramics Ltd. - Phipson & Co. Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd.

- Aurora (Pvt.) Ltd.
Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the Holding Company. The Holding Company
considers its Chief Executive, directors and all members of management team to be its
key management personnel.

FSM

FSM has related party relationship with its Associated Companies, employee benefit
plans, its directors and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties are
carried-out on arm's length basis. FSM has carried-out no transaction with key

management personnel during the current and preceding financial years.
CSM

The related parties comprise of Associated Companies, directors, major shareholders,
key management personnel, entities over which the directors are able to exercise
significant influence on financial and operating policy decisions and employees’ funds.
Amounts due from and due to these undertakings are shown under receivables and
payables. The remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives is disclosed in
remuneration note.

Significant transactions with related parties during the year were as follows:

2024 2023
Arpak International Investments Ltd. Rupees in thousand
Mark-up charged 5,979 7,529
Syntronics Ltd.
Purchase of store items 11,993 163,068
Dividend paid 17,952 E
Syntron Ltd.
Purchase of store items 220,513 94,760
Azlak Enterprises (Pvt.) Ltd.
Services rendered 48,780 38,018
Mark-up charged 19,507 17,605

154



44.5

45.

45.1

45.2

2024 2023
Rupees in thousand

Expenses paid 3,385 1,931
Dividend paid 7,487 -
Phipson & Company Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd.

Expenses paid 32 413
Dividend paid 1,538 -
Premier Board Mills Ltd.

Mark-up charged 14,860 16,463
Provident fund

Contribution to provident fund 38,884 32,810
Directors

Dividends paid 28,721 B

Following are the related parties with whom CSM and its Subsidiaries had entered into
transactions or have arrangement / agreement in place:

Company Name Basis of Association Sh‘are-
holding %
Premier Board Mills Ltd, Common directorship -
Azlak Enterprises (Pvt.) Ltd. SRR, ', JR—— 5.15%
Arpak International Investments Ltd. s |+ 3
Phipson & Company Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd. el [* R 1.07%
Syntronics Ltd. (¢ 12.51%
Syntron Ltd. S P -
Premier Construction and Housing Ltd. e ) S a
Earth Securities (Private) Ltd. it i 2

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Aggregate amounts of remuneration, including certain benefits, to Chief Executive,
Directors and Executives of the Holding Company , are as follows:

Chief Executive  Director Executive

RS s o 2 om0

seenmnamaneenes RUPEES N thOUSANG wemmmememmaneens
Managerial remuneration 1,746 1613 28,364 3,668 12923 2708

Contribution to provident fund - - - : 123 -

1,746 1613 28,364 3668 13,046 2708
Number of persons 1 1 1 1 7 1

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all
benefits, to Executive Directors and Chief Executives of CSM and its Subsidiaries, is as
follows:
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45.3

45.4

45.5

45.6

45.7

46.
46.1

: Chief Executive Directors Executives
Particulars

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)-
Managerial remuneration 34914 32258 34.914 38,258 76,976 69,648
Bonus . 7,590 - 7,590 1,815 44 882
Housing and utilities 6,624 4,044 6,136 1,851 46,446 46,432
CSM and its Subsidiaries
contribution to provident fund ‘ ’ " * 3,545 4214
Medical 4,781 4346 - 136 2,386 827
Other expenses 3073 13628 38,027 20,042 8,097 -
49,392 61,866 78,077 67,877 139,265 166,003
Number of persons 1 1 1 2 Ky 29

In case of the Holding Company, the Chief Executive, one Director and the Executives
residing in the factory are provided free housing (with the Holding Company's generated
electricity in the residential colony within the factory compound). The Chief Executive, one
Director and Executives are also provided with the Holding Company maintained cars.

The Chief Executive and Executives were provided with the CSM and its Subsidiaries
maintained cars for official and personal use. All the Executives based at factory
compounds are also provided with free housing with CSM's generated electricity,
telephone and certain household items in the residential colony within the factory
compound.

Mr Abbas Sarfraz Khan, director of CSM and its Subsidiaries, holds office of profit for
performing extra services, for which approval was obtained vide extraordinary general
meeting dated June 21, 2019 under section 171 of the Companies Act, 2017. His
remuneration includes monthly salary, bonus as per CSM and its Subsidiaries policy,
CSM maintained vehicle and reimbursement of all travelling and medical expenses. The
Board of Directors of CSM are also entitled to reimbursement of all travelling, telephone
and medical expenses, as approved vide 31st annual general meeting of CSM's
members dated March 29, 2019. During the year, the remuneration of Directors were
increased vide Extraordinary General Meeting (EOGM) dated August 25, 2023.

In case of FSM, no managerial remuneration was paid to Chief Executive and Directors
during the current and preceding years; however, they are provided with free use of
FSM's maintained cars.

Remuneration of the Directors does not include amounts paid or provided for, if any, by
the Associated Companies.

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 2024 2023
The Holding Company
Sugar Cane Plant

Rated crushing capacity per day M.Tonnes 3,810 3,810
Cane crushed M.Tonnes 130,269 102,302
Sugar produced M.Tonnes 12,477 10,721
Days worked Nos. 51 130
Sugar recovery % 9.61 10.35
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46.2

46.3

Sugar Beet Plant

Rated slicing capacity per day M.Tonnes
Distillery

Rated capacity per day Gallons

Ethanol produced Gallons

Days worked Nos.

2024
2,500

14,300

- The normal season days are 150 days for Sugar Cane crushing.
- Production was restricted to the availability of raw materials to the Holding Company.

CSM

Sugar Cane Plants

Rated crushing capacity (Metric Tonnes / day)

On the basis of average number of 99 days (2023:105 days)
Actual cane crushed (Metric Tonnes)

Sugar produced (Metric Tonnes)

Ethanol Fuel Plant

Rated production capacity (Litres / day)

On the basis of average number of 347 days
(2023:343 days) (Litres)

Actual production (Litres)

Storage facility
Storage capacity (metric tonnes)

Wheat

Production capacity (tonnes)
Actual production (tonnes)
Days worked:

Sugar Unit - |

Sugar Unit - 1

Ethanol Fuel Plant

Wheat

2024

18,000
1,782,000
1,726,610

171,591

125,000

43,375,000
43,053,990

20,000

102,600
58,481

99
98
347
270

2023
2,500

14,300
920,400
127

2023

18,000
1,890,000
1,963,169

211,871

125,000

42,875,000
42,374,200

20,000

106
103
343

Sugar Division performed at more than installed capacity to the extent of availability of

sugar cane. Capacity of Ethanol Units were also over-utilized on certain days.

FSM
Sugar Cane Plant

Rated crushing capacity per day M.Tonnes
Sugar Beet Plant

Rated slicing capacity per day M.Tonnes

2024

880

1,000

2023

880

1,000

Due to non-availability of raw materials, sugar cane and beet plants of FSM had remained

closed during the current and preceding years.

197



47.

49.1

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Balance as at September 30, 2022
Changes from financing activities
Finances - net
Finances - obtained
- repaid
Mark-up accrued
Mark-up paid
Dividend paid

Balance as at September 30, 2023
Changes from financing activities
Finances - net

Finances - obtained
- repaid
Mark-up accrued
Mark-up paid
Dividend paid

Balance as at September 30, 2024

Liabilities
Loans
| e | on | [ et | T
parties
Rupees in thousand
4958803 237,007 219325 5002895 429125 22649 10,868,804
1,020,567 (387,275) 633,202
178,896 178,896
(162,493)  (31,235) (193,728)
2,807,543 2,807 543
(2,489,914) (2,489, 914)
(35) (35)
1,020,567 16403 (31,235)  (387.275) 37,629 (35) 936,054
5979370 253410 188,000 4615620  TA6TS4 20614 11,805,858
1,373,665 5,056,191 6,429,856
171,537 171,537
(167,073)  (10,168) (177,241
4,792,040 4,792,040
(5,077,351) (5,077,351)
1,107 1,107
1373665 4464 (10168) 5056191  (285311) 1407 6,139,948
7,353,035 ﬂ m 9671811 461443 ﬂ 17,945,806

PROVIDENT FUNDS RELATING DISCLOSURES
The Group operates funded contributory provident fund schemes for all its permanent

and eligible employees.

Investments made by the Group, out of the provident funds, have been made in
accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules
formulated for this purpose.

OPERATING SEGMENT
The Holding Company

The Holding Company's reportable segments are as follows:

- Sugar
- Distillery
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Segment operating results of the Holding Company for the year ended September 30, 2024

Sales
External customers

Less : sales tax & commission
Sales - net

Segment expenses:
Cost of sales
Gross (loss) / profit

Distribution cost
Administrative expenses

(Loss) / profit from operations

Other income
Other expenses

Segment resuits

Finance cost
(Loss) ! profit before taxation

Final tax levies and income Laxation

(Loss) / profit after taxation

Segment assets and liabilities

Sugar
Ethanol
Total for reportabla segmeant

Sugar Division Ethanol Division Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees in thousand

1,678,635 1,222,050 - 2.000175 1,678,635 3,242 225
(274,242)  (162,066) - (14,197)  (274,242)  (176,263)

1,404,393 1.059,984 - 1,985,978 1,404,393 3,045 962
(2,048,702) (1.075,120) (92,713) (1.612976) (2,141,415) (2.688,006)

(644,309) (15,136) (92,713) 373,002 (737,022) 357,866
(4,718) (3,768) ; (64,058) (4,718) IE?.BEE}‘
(136,537) (94,180) - (136,537) (94,180)
(141,255} (97,848) - {64 058) (141,255) {162.0086)

(785,564)  (113,084) (92,713) 308,044 (878,277) 195,860

681,882 19,957 - - 681,882 19,957
(4) (2,828) - (47,944) (4) (50.772)
681,878 17,129 - (47,044) 681,878 (30,815)

(103,686) (95,955) (92,713) 261,000 (196,399) 165,045
(235,018) (89,139) a (61,165) (235,018)  (150,304)

(338,704) (185,084) (92,713) 199,835 (431,417) 14,741
(258,306) (58,243)

(173,111) 72,984

Azssets Liabitities
2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupses in thousand
2,484 940 3,031,516 2,093,917 1,188,651
1,611,528 218,445 134,582 21,553

4,096 468 3,249 961 2,228,499 1,210.204 i
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49.3

49.4

49.5

Sales to domestic customers in Pakistan are 100% (2023: 60.29%) and to customers

outside Pakistan are nil (2023 : 39.71%) of the revenues during the current financial year.

All non-current assets of the Holding Company as at September 30, 2024 and September
30, 2023 are located in Pakistan.

The Holding Company does not have transactions with any customer which amount to
10% or more of its sales.

Segment operating results of CSM for the year ended September 30, 2024

Sugar Division Ethanol Division Wheat Division Total
204 2023 2024 2023 2024 2024 2023
Rupees in thousand
Sales
-External customers 26,325,758 19721903 9207784 8114885 5727410 - 41260952  27.836,758
Inter segment 1,200,555 1534820 - - - 1200555 1534 829
7616313 21256732 907784 8114885 572740 - 42551507 29311617
Less : sales tax & others (4,186,892) (2910329 (362,530 (85,571) (11,320 3 (4,560,742)  (2,95,300)
Sales - net 1A0AN 1846403 845254 8029314 5716080 - 37.900,765 26,375,717
Segment expenses:
Cost of sales (22,638,7600 (15.362431)[ (6,927, 772)| (3.291,183) (6,058, ETEW . (34,823,104)(| (18,653.624)
less: Inter segment cost - - 1,200,555)(| (1,534.829) - | - (1,290,555)(| (1,534,829
(22,635,760) (15362431) (V418 327) (4.826.022) (5059572 - (36,113,699) (20,188.453)
Gross profit 783061 2083872 1420927 3203282 (343442 . 1877106 6167 264
Selling and distribution expenses {44,058 (146522)]  (833.825)] (M944) (60,363 - (938,248)||  (366,016)
Administrative and general expenses (929,694)f  (302547)|  (217556)|l  (271.106)|  (202.585) (&7 30T (1,409,835)(| (1,120,560
Net impairment losses on financial assets (160,360) {66 964) - - (18 968) - (179,828) (66, 564)
Others - - - - - (90,409) (20,005)
(1,134.612) (1016033 (1,119,381)  (990600)  {281,918] 30T (26183200 (2,073,845
Profit from operations (340,951) 1,967 939 5546 2212602  (625.400) [47.307)  (Te1,214) 4113319
Other income o405 207238 “ T S 043 ; 194383 2e20m
Other expenses [16,389) (30 445)] . (18.915) - (16,389)(|  (108,360)
17206 118,71 5,035 16,051 843 - 177,994 132 842
Segment results (168,935 2,084,730 20581 2228743 (624457 {47.307) (563.220) 4246161
Finance cost (4,596,203) (2.783,013)
(Loss) | profit before tax (5,159513) 1463148
Taxation 1,526,139 105,934
(loss) [ profit for the year (3,633.374) 1,569,082
Segment assets and liabilities
2024 2023
{Rupees in thousand)
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Sugar 21,102,961 14,647,056 21, 738172 13,680,713
Ethanol 7,367,338 1,942 447 7.367.338 1.942. 447
Whe at 4,768,169 4,040,982 2.967.159 2,319,315
Total for reportable segment 33,238,468 20,630,485 32,072.669 17.942.475
Others 1,747,203 1,271,924 1,747,203 1,271,924
Total assets / liabilities __ 34985671 21902409 33819872 18214399
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50. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2024 2023

==mee NUMbBEr ==een=
Number of persons employed as at September 30,
- permanent 1,401 1,229
- contractual 1,266 1,281
2,667 2,510
Average number of employees during the year
- permanent 1,361 1,317
- contractual 1,616 1,803
2,977 3,120

51. SHAHRIAH SCREENING DISCLOSURE

Below is the disclosure as required by the paragraph VIl of the 4th Schedule to the
Companies Act, 2017 determined by Shariah expert appointed by the Company:

The Holding Company

e I s e Y23
Conventional Cir:;:iaahnt Conventiona Cihn&‘;;:t
----- RUPEES N thousand seesesssse
Long term finances 933,558 :
onort ferm borrowings 497,000
Accrued mark-up 93,881 : 12672
Bank balances 7,217 - 125,0%
Other income
) Profit on bank deposit 5,03 : 2418
h) Dividend home B8, 755
Mark-up on short term finances 2428 : 148 315
Mark-up on long term finances : : 4
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CSM

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Disclosures in relation to the Statement of Financial Position - Liability Side
Financing obtained as per Islamic mode
Long tem 358,037 695.493
Short term 2,583,081 1.217 894
Lease financing 8828 18,266
Interest or mark-up accrued on any convenbional loan or advance 619,979 524 170
Disclosures relation to the Statement of Financial Position - Asset Side
Bank Balances 14,786 6.461
Shor-term Shariah compliant nvestments . .
Long-{erm Shariah compliant investments . -
Shariah-compliant bank deposits, bank balances, and TDRs 164,817 64,571
Disclosures in relation to the Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Revenue earned from a Shariah-compliant business segment 25049780 18346403
Break-up of late paymenis or liquidated damages . -
Gain or loss or dividend earmned on Shariah compliant investments . -
Proft earned from Shanah-comphant bank deposits, bank
balances, or TDRs 3 1
Exchange (loss)/ gain eamed from actual currency {37,184) (137,403)
Exchange gains eamed using conventonal denvative financial instruments . -
Proft paid on Islamic mode of financing 703,534 581,356
Total Interest earned on any conventional lcan or advance 315,360 67.035
Source and detailed breakup of other income:
Shariah compliant income:
Proft eamed from Shariah-compliant bank deposits 3 1
bank balances, or TDRs
Sale of press mud - net of sales tax 7,218 5879
Sale of fusel of - net of sales tax 310 3378
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 15,490 B 446
Gan on derecognition of right of use assets . -
Scrap sales - nel of expenses 52,818 63372
Rental income 115 115
Non-Sharnah compliant income:
Mark-up eamed on bank deposits, bank balances, or TDRs 84,656 41,549
income against insurance claim . 119.462

Other Disclosure

Relationship with Shariah-compliant financial institutions, including banks, takaful operators and their windows.

- Meezan Bank Lim ited

- Al Baraka Bank Lim fted

- MCB Isiamic Bank Limited

- Dubal lslamic Bank Pakistan Limited

- National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) slamic
- Bank Isiami Pakistan Limited
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52. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever necessary, for
the purpose of comparison; however, except for disclosing contract liabilities separately,
which were previously grouped under trade and other payables, no material re-
arrangements and re-classifications have been made in these consolidated financial
statements.

53. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements have been authorised for issue on February 03,
2025 by the board of directors of the Holding Company.

e W

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Designated email address of the Chairman at which the duly filled in ballot paper may be sent:

The Premier Sugar Mills & Distillery Company Limited

BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING THROUGH POST

For the Special Business at the Annual General Meeting to be held on Wednesday, 26™ February 2025 at 11:30
a.m. at Company's Registered Office, Nowshera Road, Mardan as well as through electronic means.

mujah igl;fﬂpremjc rerouppk.com

Name of sharcholder/joint sharcholder(s)

Registered Address:

Folio /CDC Participant / Investor ID with sub-account

No.

Number of shares held

CNIC / Passport No. (in case of foreigner)
(copy to be attached)

Additional Information and enclosures (In case of representative of body corporate, corporation and Federal
Grovernment)

Name of Authorized Signatory:

CNIC / Passport No. (in case of foreigner) of
Authorized Signatory — (copy to be attached)

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolutions through postal ballot by

conveying my/our assent or dissent to the following resolution by placing tick (
appropriate box below:

) mark in the

Agenda | Nature & Description of Resolution No. of | I/We assent | |/We assent
No. ordinary to the | to the
shares for | Resolution(s) | Resolution(s)
which vote | (FOR)
ts v (AGAINST)
Special Business
& TO APPROVE RELATED

PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

a. To ragfy and approve the
transactions carrded out by the
Company with related parties for the
year ended September 30, 2024, and to
pass the following Special Resolution(s)
with or without modification(s):

“RESOLVED THAT the transactions
conducted in ordinary course of
business with Related Parties during the
year ended September 30, 2024 be and
are hereby raufied, approved and

confirmed”

b. To approve transactions with
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Agenda
No.

Nature & Description of Resolution

No. of
ordinary
shares for
which vote
is cast

I/We assent
to the
Resolution(s)
(FOR)

I/We assent
to the
Resolution(s)

(AGAINST)

related parties and to authorize the
Board of Directors of the Company to
carry out such related party transactions
from time to time which require
approval of shareholders u/s 207
and/or 208 of the Companies Act,
2017 and to pass the following Special
Resolution(s)  with  or  without
modification(s):

“Resolved, that the Company may
carry out transactions including but not
limited to sale and purchase of stores
and spares, shared expenses, toll
manufacturing, sale and purchase of
products/mid-products/raw

material/assets and  purchase of
packaging material, payment against
sales collections, lease rentals and
license fee, fee for services, with related
parties from time to time with related

parties during the vear ending
September 30, 2025.

Resolved further, that denils of
transactions incurred up to date of the
next meeting of shareholders shall be
presented in the next meeting of
shareholders for ratification.

Resolved further, that within the
parameters approved above by the
shareholders of the Company, the
Board of Directors of the Company
may approve specifically related party
transactions from time to time in
compliance with the Company’s policy
pertaining to related party transactions
and notwithstanding any interest of the
directors of the Company in any related
party transaction(s) which has been
noted by the sharcholders and the
transactions approved by the Board
shall be deemed to have been approved
by the shareholders u/s 207 and/or 208
of the Companies Act, 2017.”

165




Agenda | Nature & Description of Resolution No. of | I/We assent | I/We assent
No. ordinary to the | to the
shares for | Resolution(s) | Resolution(s)

which vote | (FOR)

6 piich (AGAINST)

NOTES:

Dully filled postal ballot should be sent to the Chairman of The Premier Sugar Mills & Distillery Company
Limited at (,Dmpmwfs address at Kings Arcade, 20-A Matkaz F-7, Islamabad. or (Email:

nlu]a._hui; premiergrouppk.com;).

Copy of CNIC/ Passport No. (in case of foreigner) should be enclosed with the postal ballot form.
2. Postal ballot forms should reach the Chairman within business hours by or before February 24™, 2025.
Any postal ballot received after this date, will not be considered for voting.
3. Signature on postal ballot should match with signature on CNIC/ Passport No. (in case of foreigner).
Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written ballot paper will be rejected.
5. This postal Poll paper is also available for download from the website of The Premier Sugar Mills &
Distillery Company Limited at https://premiergrouppk.com. Shareholders may download the ballot paper
from website or use the same ballot paper published in newspapers.

-

Signature of shareholder(s)/ Proxy Holder(s)/Authorized Signatory
(In case of corporate entity, please affix company stamp)

Place:

Date:
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Key features:
3@ Licensed Entities Verification

e Scam meter”

o Jamapunj games”®

B Tax credit calculator®

& Company Verification

B Insurance & Investment Checklist
»? FAQs Answered
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Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www. jamapunji.pk

lamapunjl pk

Stock trading simulator
(based on live feed from KSE)

Knowledge center
Risk profiler®
Financial calculator

Subscription to Alerts (event
notifications, corporate and
regulatory actions)

Jamapunji application for
mobile device

Online Quizzes
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@ jamapungl_pk
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THE PREMIER SUGAR MILLS & DISTILLERY COMPANY LIMITED
Nowshera Road, Mardan.

PROXY FORM
79th Annual General Meeting
IMNG....cocinninmmiiiannmmrasmnsnmiemnrnmon Of Gaaiaacamanu.oeing a member of The
Premier Sugar Mills & Distillery Company Limited and holding.................... ordinary shares as per

share register Folio/CDC Account NO......ccoccmiiiininnnene.. NEreby  appoint

MEIMIIS. Lcianainnimuicaimsiidsmmsrim it s asaans: GIOMar membesr of ihe
Company having Folio / CDC Account NO ........ceeviiveivinnvirnnnse CNIC NOLccciciiieiiiniiniiiisisisssiinnes. OF
FPasSSEOrt NG .coviimismsismssiisssmasndssies orialling nim L Her ML M. ossisamissmisossiasisiisesimiaiOl

Folio / CDC Accounts NO......ciiinn. GNIC
NO..coiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiceenennn.. O Passport NO.eeccce .2 WO S @lS0 @ member of

the Company, as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General

Meeting of the Company to be held on February 26, 2025 and at any adjournment thereof.

Revenue Stamp Signature of Shareholder
Signature(Rs. 5.00) (The signature should agree with the specimen
registered with the Company)

Dated this ......... day of ........... 2025. Signature of Proxy
1. Witness: 2. Witness:
Name: Name:
Signature: Signature:
Address: Address:
CNIC No: CNIC No:

Note: Proxies, in order to be effective, must reach the Company's Registered Office not less than 48
hours before the time for holding the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.

CDC Shareholders and their Proxies are each requested to attached an attested photocopy of
their CNIC or Passport with the proxy form before submission to the Company.
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